UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

Form 10-K
(Mark One)
[X] ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR X§(OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934. For the
fiscal year ended December 31, 2(
or
[ 1] TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(dy ®HE SECURITIES For the transition perio to
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934 from

Commission file number 0-21513

DXP Enterprises, Inc.

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its cégrt

Texas 76-0509661

(State or other jurisdictio (I.R.S. Employer Identification Numbe
of incorporation or organizatiol

7272 Pinemont, Houston, Texa 77040 (713) 99¢-4700

(Address of principal executive offices) (Zipd) (Registrant’s telephone number,
including area code

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(thefAct: None
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(ghefAct:

Common Stock, $0.01 Par Valui NASDAQ
(Title of Class) (Name of exchange on which register

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a welbwn seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405edbdturities Act. Yes[ ] No [X]
Indicate by check mark if the registrant is notuiegd to file reports pursuant to Section 13 ort®eacl5(d) of the Act. Yes [ ] No [X]

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant @9 filed all reports required to be filed by Seetk8 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange
of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for ssiohrter period that the registrant was requirefilésuch reports), and (2) has been su
to such filing requirements for the past 90 dayss [X] No [ ]

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant heémrstted electronically and posted on its corpokéeb site, if any, every Interactive D
File required to be submitted and posted pursuaRiule 405 of Regulation $-during the preceding 12 months (or for such shrqueriod the
the registrant was required to submit and post §iled).

[1Yes []No

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquéitdgrs pursuant to Item 405 of RegulationKSis not contained herein, and will not
contained, to the best of registrant's knowledgeldfinitive proxy or information statements incorgted by reference in Part Il of this Fc
10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-K. []

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, n-accelerated filer, or a smaller repor
company. (See definitions of “large acceleratéat’fi “accelerated filer”, and “smaller reportingrapany” in Rule 1212 of the Exchange Act




Large accelerated filer [ ] Accelted filer [X]
Non-accelerated filer [ ] (Do not check if a smalteporting

company) Smaller reporticgmpany [ ]

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantsbell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the A¢8s [] No [X]

Aggregate market value of the registrant's CommntorkSheld by non-affiliates of registrant as of 0, 2010: $144,552,821
Number of shares of registrant's Common Stock antshg as of March 15, 2011: 14,087,9

Documents incorporated by reference: Portions efdéfinitive proxy statement for the annual meetihghareholders to be held in 2011
incorporated by reference into Part Il hereof.




TABLE OF CONTENTS

DESCRIPTION
Item Page
PART I
1. Business 4
1A. Risk Factors 10
1B. Unresolved Staff Commen 13
2. Properties 13
3. Legal Proceeding 13
4. (Reserved
PART II
5. Market for the Registrant's Common Equity, Relgdéackholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of EQaturities
14
6. Selected Financial Da 16
7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financiaidition and Results of Operatio 16
TA. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about MaiRisk 27
8. Financial Statements and Supplementary [ 28
9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants mouaing and Financial Disclosu 54
9A. Controls and Procedur: 54
9B. Other Informatior 55
PART llI
10. Directors, Executive Officers, and Corporate Goaaae 56
11. Executive Compensatic 56
12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners dwhagemen 56
and Related Stockholder Mattt 56
13. Certain Relationships and Related TransactionsPargttor Independenc 56
14. Principal Accountant Fees and Servi 56
PART IV
15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedt 57
Signature: 62

DISCLOSURE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains statemérds constitute “forward-looking statementsithin the meaning of the Private Securi
Litigation Reform Act of 1995. Such statements t&nidentified by the use of forward-looking terwlimgy such as “believes”, “expects”
“may”, “estimates”, “will", “should”, “plans” or “aticipates”or the negative thereof or other variations thereonomparable terminology,
by discussions of strategy. Any such forwérdking statements are not guarantees of futuréopeance and involve significant risks
uncertainties, and actual results may vary matgrigdm those discussed in the forwdobking statements as a result of various factditses:
factors include the effectiveness of managensesirategies and decisions, our ability to affectiaternal growth strategy, general econc
and business conditions, developments in technologryability to effectively integrate businesses may acquire, new or modified statul
or regulatory requirements and changing pricesmaarket conditions. This report identifies othertéas that could cause such differences.
cannot assure you that these are all of the fa¢chatscould cause actual results to vary materityn the forwardooking statements. V
assume no obligation and do not intend to updatsetiiorward-looking statements.




PART |

This Annual Report on Form 10-K (this “Report”) daims, in addition to historical information, “forard-looking statementsthat involve
risks and uncertainties. DXP Enterprises, Inc.'suat results could differ materially from those dissed in the forwartboking statement
Factors that could cause or contribute to suchedéhces include, but are not limited to, thosewlised in "Risk Factors", and elsewhere in
Annual Report on Form -K. Unless the context otherwise requires, refeesna this Report to the "Company”, "DXP", “we” tour” shall
mean DXP Enterprises, Inc., a Texas corporatiogetber with its subsidiaries.

ITEM 1. Business
Company Overview

DXP was incorporated in Texas in 1996 to be theassor to a company founded in 1908. Since owtegessor company was founded
have primarily been engaged in the business ofildiging maintenance, repair and operating (“MR@Ipducts, equipment and service
industrial customers. We are organized into tlsegaments: Service Centers, Innovative Pumping Bokitand Supply Chain Services. Th
a change from prior years when we were organizeddnly two segments. We believe this reorgarmzabetter reflects how we manage
current business. Prior yesufinancial information has been restated throughoumatch the new segmentation. Sales and opgratcom:
for 2008, 2009 and 2010, and identifiable assetiseatlose of such years for our business segnaeatgresented in Note 14 of the Notes t¢
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Our total sales have increased from $125 milliot986 to $656 million in 2010 through a combinatairinternal growth and acquisitions.
December 31, 2010 we operated from 176 locatiodR istates in the U.S. and Sonora, Mexico servingerthan 40,000 customers engage
a variety of industrial end markets. We have greales and profitability through a combination dfigional locations, products, services
becoming customer driven experts in maintenangairend operating solutions.

Our principal executive office is located at 727RdMont Houston, Texas 77040, and our telephonebruis (713) 996+700. Our websi
address on the Internet is www.dxpe.com and emaalg be sent to info@dxpe.com. The reference tormlosite address does not const
incorporation by reference of the information camea on the website and should not be considergdpthis report.

Industry Overview

The industrial distribution market is highly fragmed. Based on 2009 sales as reported by InduBlisélibution magazine, we were the Z
largest distributor of MRO products in the Unitetht8s. Most industrial customers currently purcheéssr industrial supplies throu
numerous local distribution and supply companidsesk distributors generally provide the customeh wepair and maintenance servi
technical support and application expertise witkpeet to one product category. Products typicaktypmurchased by the distributor for re:
directly from the manufacturer and warehoused sttidution facilities of the distributor until sotd the customer. The customer also typic
will purchase an amount of product inventory farriear term anticipated needs and store those @odtits industrial site until the prodt
are used.

We believe that the distribution system for indiagtoroducts in the United States, described inpifeeeding paragraph, creates inefficienci
both the customer and the distributor levels thioegcess inventory requirements and duplicativé stosctures. To compete more effectiv
our customers and other users of MRO products egkisg ways to enhance efficiencies and lower MR@lpct and procurement costs
response to this customer desire, three primangdfr@ave emerged in the industrial supply industry:

« Industry Consolidation. Industrial customers have reduced the number oplgrprelationships they maintain to lower ti
purchasing costs, improve inventory managemengrassonsistently high levels of customer servicd anhance purchasi
power. This focus on fewer suppliers has led tasobdation within the fragmented industrial distrilon industry.




Customized Integrated Servides industrial customers focus on their core manuféag or other production competencies,
increasingly are demanding customized integratiervises, consisting of valusdded traditional distribution, supply ch
services, modular equipment and repair and maintEnservices

« Single Source, Fir-Tier Distribution. As industrial customers continue to address costatoment, there is a trend tow
reducing the number of suppliers and eliminatingtipie tiers of distribution. Therefore, to loweverall costs to the custom
some MRO distributors are expanding their prodoeecage to eliminate secc-tier distributors and become*one stop sour”.

We believe we have increased our competitive adggnthrough our traditional and integrated suppbgmms, which are designed to add
the customer's specific product and procuremerdsié&'e offer our customers various options forititegration of their supply needs, ranc
from serving as a single source of supply for akpecific lines of products and product categotwesffering a fully integrated supply packi
in which we assume the procurement and managemaectidns, including ownership of inventory, at thestomer's location. Our approac!
integrated supply allows us to design a progran tieat fits the needs of the customer. Customershpsing large quantities of product
able to outsource all or most of those needs td-ascustomers with smaller supply needs, we ale tabcombine our traditional distributi
capabilities with our broad product categories addanced ordering systems to allow the customengage in onstop sourcing without t
commitment required under an integrated supplyrecht

Business Segments

DXP is organized under three business segmentxic8eCenters, Innovative Pumping Solutions (“IP2Hd Supply Chain Servic
(“SCS”). Our segments provide management with a comprehefisancial view of our key businesses. The segmenable the alignment
strategies and objectives and they provide a fraone¥or timely and rational allocation of resoureeighin our businesses.

Service Centers Segment

The Service Centers provide MRO products, equipraadtservices, including technical design expesise logistics capabilities, to indust
customers with the ability to provide same dayweli. We offer our customers a single source opsupn an efficient and competitive be
by being a first-tier distributor that can purchgseducts directly from the manufacturer. As atfiisr distributor, we are able to reduce
customers' costs and improve efficiencies in thgpsuchain. We also provide services such as feafiety supervision, ihouse and fiel
repair and predictive maintenance. We offer a wadge of industrial MRO products, equipment andises through a complete continuun
customized and efficient MRO solutions.

DXP Service Centers are stocked and staffed withwkedgeable sales associates and backed by a lcasdraustomer service team
experienced industry professionals. Our Servicat&s’ products and services are distributed from 112isereenters and 6 distributi
centers.

DXP Service Centers provide a wide range of MROdpots in the rotating equipment, bearing, powengnaission, hose, fluid pow
industrial supply and safety product categories. d¥eently serve as a firsier distributor of more than 1,000,000 items ofiebhmore tha
60,000 are stock keeping units ("SKUs") for usemarily by customers engaged in the oil and gasdfand beverage, petrochemi
transportation and other general industrial indestrOther industries served by our Service Ceritelside mining, construction, chemic
municipal, food and beverage, agriculture and jauig paper.

Virtually all of the segment’s long-lived assete &cated in the U.S. and approximately 99% ofssafte recognized in the U.S.

At December 31, 2010, the Service Centers segnaehi /127 full-time employees.




Supply Chain Services Segment

DXP’s Supply Chain Services segment manages thglysehain of its customers from across a variety ofistdes. Our mission is to help |
customers become more competitive by reducing thdirect material costs and order cycle time byréasing productivity and by creat
enterprise-wide inventory and procurement visipiéind control.

DXP has developed assessment tools and mastetepigtates aimed at taking cost out of supply cipadtesses, streamlining operations
boosting productivity. This mulfiaceted approach allows us to manage the entinenethdor maximum efficiency and optimal control, ialh
ultimately provides our customers with a low-cagusion.

DXP takes a consultative approach to determinstie@gths and opportunities for improvement withicustomes indirect supply chain. Tt
assessment determines if and how we can best dineaaperations, drive value within the procurempmbcess, and increase contro
storeroom management.

Decades of supply chain inventory management esmpegi and comprehensive research, as well as aitiformderstanding of our custonser’
business and industry have allowed us to desigrdatdized programs that are flexible enough toutlg daptable to address our customers’
unigue supply chain challenges. These standargimagtams include:

« SmartAgreement is a planned, pro-active procurers@ntion for MRO categories serviced by local DS&vice Centers.

« SmartBuy is DXI's or-site or centralized MRO procurement soluti

« SmartSourcéMis DXP’s on-site procurement and storeroom managéeimeDXP personnel.

« SmartStore is DX's customized-Catalog solution

« SmartVend is DXP’s industrial dispensing solutidh.allows for inventorylevel optimization, user accountability and itemage
reduction by 2-40%.

« SmartServ is DX integrated service pump solution. It providemare efficient way to manage the entire life cyofepumping
systems and rotating equipme

DXP’s SmartSolutions programs help customers to cutymto costs, improve supply chain efficiencies arstaim expert technic
support. DXP represents manufacturers of up to 808l the maintenance, repair and operating pctelaf our customers. Unlike many ot
distributors who buy products from second-tier sesr DXP takes customers to the source of the ptediuey need.

The Supply Chain Services segment operates suppin installations in 52 of our customers’ facdgi

All of the segment’s long-lived assets are locatetthe U. S. and approximately 99% of 2010 salesewecognized in the U.S.

At December 31, 2010, the Supply Chain Servicemseg had approximately 281 full-time employees.

Innovative Pumping Solutions Segment

DXP’s Innovative Pumping Solutions®gment provides fabrication and technical desigmeet the capital equipment needs of our g
customer base.

DXP’s engineering staff can design a complete ecugtomp package to meet the customprsject specifications. Drafting programs suc
Solidworks and Auto CAD allow our engineering tetamverify the design and layout of packages with oustomers prior to the start
fabrication. FEA programs such as Cosmos Profeakiame used to design the package to meet all danthfuture loads and forces. T
process helps maximize the pump packages’ lifenainémizes any impact to the environment.




With over 100 years of fabrication experience, Dixd& acquired the technical expertise to ensureotitapumps and pump packages are
to meet the highest standards. DXP utilizes manurfacauthorized equipment and certified persoriPeinp packages require MRO and C
equipment such as pumps, motors, valves , and owatde productssuch as welding supplies. DXP leverages its MR@rories and breac
of authorized products to lower the total cost araintain the quality of the pump package.

DXP’s fabrication facilities provide convenient teclatisupport and pump services. They have been desigith state of the art equipmen
provide the technical services our customers requir

« Certified structural welding
« Certified pipe welding

« Custom skid assemb

« Custom coating

« Hydrostatic pressure testil
« Mechanical string testin

« ABS/DNV certification

Examples of our innovative pump packages include:

» Diesel and electric driven firewater

« Pipeline booster

« Potable water packages

« Pigging pump packages

« LACT charge units

« Chemical injection pump packages wash down units
« Seawater lift pumps

« Jockey pump

« Condensate pump packag

« Cooling water skid:

« Seawater/produced water injection packe

« Variety of packages to meet APIl, ANSI and NFPA @écifications

The Innovative Pumping Solutions segment operaiesfos facilities located in Texas, Louisiana afebraska.
All of the segment’s long-lived assets are locatetthe U. S. and virtually all sales are recognizethe U.S.

At December 31, 2010, the Innovative Pumping Sohgisegment had 185 full-time employees.

Products

Most industrial customers currently purchase tMIRO supplies through local or national distributiocompanies that are focused on sing
unigue product categories. As a fitigr distributor, our network of service and distriion centers stock more than 60,000 stock keeyirity
and provide customers with access to more thar0J00 items. Given our breadth of product and toistrial distribution customers for
around key products categories such as bearing®wWep transmission, fluid handling and power, safety industrial supplies, we hi
become customer driven experts in four key prodategories. As such, our three business segmeatsuaported by these key proc
categories including, rotating equipment, beariBgpower transmission, industrial supplies and safatoducts & services. Each busir
segment tailors its inventory and leverages prodxperts to meet the needs of its local customers.

Key product categories that we offer include:

« Rotating Equipment . Our rotating equipment line includes a full liné centrifugal pumps for transfer and process se
applications, such as petrochemicals, refining@nde oil production; rotary ge




« pumps for low- to mediunpressure service applications, such as pumpingchting oils and other viscous liquids; plunger
piston pumps for high-pressure service applicatisush as salt water injection and crude oil pipelervice; and aibperate
diaphragm pumps. We also provide various pump goces.

« Bearings & Power Transmission. Our bearing products include several types of mexi and unmounted bearings for a va
of applications. The power transmission productsdigribute include speed reducers, flexibtaipling drives, chain drive
sprockets, gears, conveyors, clutches, brakes eseksl

« Industrial Supplies . We offer a broad range of industrial supplieghsas abrasives, tapes and adhesive productshgean
lubricants, cutting tools, fasteners, hand toalsitprial products, pneumatic tools, welding sugplnd welding equipmet

« Safety Products & Services. Our safety products include eye and face pratagtiroducts, first aid products, hand protec
products, hazardous material handling productdrumentation and respiratory protection produ@dditionally, we provid
safety services including safety supervision, trajnmonitoring, equipment rental and consulti

We acquire our products through numerous originaiment manufacturers, or OEMs. We are authorimedistribute certain manufacture
products in only specific geographic areas. Albaf distribution authorizations are subject to @liation by the manufacturer upon oyeal
notice or less. For the last three fiscal yeaosymranufacturer provided products that accounted @86 or more of our revenues. We bel
that alternative sources of supply could be obthinea timely manner if any distribution authoripat were canceled. Accordingly, we do
believe that the loss of any one distribution atitation would have a material adverse effect onbusiness, financial condition or result:
operations.

Recent Acquisitions

A key component of our growth strategy includegeihg acquisitions of businesses with complemgntardesirable product lines, locatis
or customers. Since 2004, we have completed 18isitigns across our three business segments.wBisl@a summary of recent acquisitir
since May 2006.

On May 31, 2006, DXP purchased the businessesaafuetion Pump and Machine Tech. DXP acquired thesénesses to strengthen DXP’
position with upstream oil and gas and pipelinet@ugrs. DXP paid approximately $8.9 million foretacquired businesses and asst
approximately $1.2 million worth of liabilities. HE purchase price consisted of approximately $3lébmpaid in cash and $3.5 million in t
form of promissory notes payable to the former awref the acquired businesses. In addition, DXid pa additional $1.2 million in ca
based upon earnings after the acquisition date.

On October 11, 2006, we completed the acquisitiothe business of Safety International. DXP aceplithis business to strengthen DXP’
expertise in safety products and services. DXHB $ai2 million in cash for the business of Safeiginational.

On October 19, 2006, DXP completed the acquisitibrthe business of Gulf Coast Torch & RegulatoiXXPDacquired this business
strengthen DX expertise in the distribution of welding suppli&XP paid approximately $5.5 million, net of $0rbllion of acquired cas
for the business of Gulf Coast Torch & Regulatord @assumed approximately $0.2 million worth of delgproximately $2.0 million of tt
purchase price was paid by issuing promissory ruagable to the former owners of Gulf Coast TorcRé&gulator.

On November 1, 2006, DXP completed the acquisitibthe business of Safety Alliance. DXP acquires thusiness to strengthen DXP’
expertise in safety products. DXP paid $2.3 millio cash for the business of Safety Alliance.

On May 4, 2007, DXP completed the acquisition of thusiness of Delta Process Equipment. DXP paid i@illlon in cash for thi
business. DXP acquired this business to diverBiKP’s customer base in the municipalastewater and downstream industrial p
markets. The purchase price was funded by utfizvailable capacity under DXP’s credit facility.




On September 10, 2007, DXP completed the acquisitid’recision Industries, Inc. DXP acquired thisibhess to expand DXP’s geographic
presence and strengthen DXP’s integrated suppdyioff. The Company paid $106 million in cash foedtsion Industries, Inc. The purchase
price was funded using approximately $24 milliorcaéh on hand and approximately $82 million bormb¥vem a new credit facility.

On October 19, 2007, DXP completed the acquisitibthe business of Indian Fire & Safety. DXP acedithis business to strengthen DXP’
expertise in safety products and services in Newibéeand Texas. DXP paid $6.0 million in cash, $3ilion in the form of a promissory nc
and up to $3.0 million in future payments contintggpon future earnings.

On January 31, 2008, DXP completed the acquisitibthe business of Rocky Mtn. Supply. DXP acquiteid business to expand DX’
presence in the Colorado area. DXP paid $3.9anilln cash and $0.7 million in seller notes.

On August 28, 2008, DXP completed the acquisitibfBl, LLC (“PFI”). DXP acquired this business strengthen DX expertise in tf
distribution of fasteners. DXP paid $66.4 millioncash for this business.

On December 1, 2008, DXP completed the acquisifoie business of Falcon Pump. DXP acquiredlibsness to strengthen DX$pum;
offering in the Rocky Mountain area. DXP paid $&illion in cash, $0.8 million in seller notes a#d.2 million in cash based upon earn
after the acquisition date.

On April 1, 2010, DXP acquired substantially ak thssets of Quadna, Inc. (“Quadndfe purchase price of approximately $25.0 milliag
of $3.0 million of acquired cash) consisted of $iillion paid in cash, $10 million in the form of weertible promissory notes bearing inte
at a rate of 10% and approximately $4.0 milliorihia form of 343,337 shares of DXP common stock. April 9, 2010, $4.5 million princip.
amount of the convertible promissory notes, alonth wccrued interest, were converted into 376,44ares of DXPS common stock. C
August 18, 2010, $3.7 million of the convertibleomiissory notes were paid off using funds obtainemnf DXP’s credit facility and $1
million of the convertible promissory notes werengerted to 117,374 shares of DXP common stock. e million cash portion of tl
purchase price was funded by borrowings under BXisting credit facility. DXP completed this agjtion to expand its pump busines
the Western U.S.

On November 30, 2010, DXP acquired substantiallpfathe assets of D&F Distributors, Inc. (‘D&F”JThe purchase price of $13.4 milli
consisted of approximately $7.4 million paid inltaapproximately $2.9 million in the form of prorsisy notes bearing interest at a rate of
and approximately $3.1 million in the form of 15833shares of DXP common stock. The cash portioth@fpurchase price was fundec
borrowings under DXR' existing credit facility. DXP completed this aggjtion to expand its pump business in Indiananptileky, Tenness:
and Ohio.

Competition

Our business is highly competitive. In the Sen@mnters segment we compete with a variety of im@supply distributors, many of whi
may have greater financial and other resources Wwmo. Many of our competitors are small entegwiselling to customers in a limi
geographic area. We also compete with catalogildigtrs, large warehouse stores and, to a lesgentexmanufacturers. While many of
competitors offer traditional distribution of sorakthe product groupings that we offer, we areawére of any major competitor that offers
a noneatalog basis a range of products and servicesoasl las our offering. Further, while certain cagadisstributors provide product offerir
as broad as ours, these competitors do not offeipthduct application, technical design and aftersgle services that we provide. In
Supply Chain Services segment we compete with tadigtributors that provide integrated supply peogs and outsourcing services, sonr
which might be able to supply their products in arenefficient and costffective manner than we can provide. In the IntigeaPumpin
Solutions segment we compete against a varietyasfufiacturers, distributors and fabricators, manwbich may have greater financial
other resources than we do. We generally competervice and price in all of our segments.




Insurance

We maintain liability and other insurance that vedidwve to be customary and generally consisterit imdlustry practice. We retain a portior
the risk for medical claims, general liability, vker's compensation and property losses. The variodsatibles of our insurance polic
generally do not exceed $200,000 per occurrentereTare also certain risks for which we do notm@én insurance. There can be
assurance that such insurance will be adequat@datisks involved, that coverage limits will na bxceeded or that such insurance will a
to all liabilities. The occurrence of an advers@iralin excess of the coverage limits that we maintauld have a material adverse effect or
financial condition and results of operations. Tremiums for insurance have increased signifigaotler the past three years. This ti
could continue. Additionally, we are partially fsglsured for our group health plan, workecompensation, auto liability and general liay
insurance. The cost of claims for the group healtin has increased over the past three years trdmd is expected to continue.

Government Regulation and Environmental Matters

We are subject to various laws and regulationsing/ao our business and operations, and varioathand safety regulations as establishe
the Occupational Safety and Health Administration.

Certain of our operations are subject to fedetatesand local laws and regulations controlling discharge of materials into or otherw
relating to the protection of the environment. Altigh we believe that we have adequate proceduresniply with applicable discharge ¢
other environmental laws, the risks of accidentaitamination or injury from the discharge of coli&d or hazardous materials and chem
cannot be eliminated completely. In the event ahsa discharge, we could be held liable for any atzes that result, and any such liab
could have a material adverse effect on us. Waareurrently aware of any situation or conditibattwe believe is likely to have a mate
adverse effect on our results of operations omfired condition.

Employees
At December 31, 2010, DXP had 1,772 full-time empks. We believe that our relationship with our Eyges is good.
Available Informatior

Our Annual Report on Form 10-K, Quarterly RepomsFmrm 10-Q, Current Reports on FornK8and amendments to those reports file
furnished pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of $leeurities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended (tkeh&nge Act”),are available free

charge through our Internet website ( www.dxpe.doas soon as reasonably practicable after we eldctlly file such material with,

furnish it to, the Securities and Exchange Comrigsi

ITEM 1A. Risk Factors

The following is a discussion of significant riskctors relevant to DXB’business that could adversely affect its busjriagsscial condition ¢
results of operations.

The trading price of our common stock may be Velati

The market price of our common stock could be sulifewide fluctuations in response to, among othirgs, the risk factors described in
and other periodic reports, and other factors bdymmr control, such as fluctuations in the valuaiidd companies perceived by investors t
comparable to us. Furthermore, the stock markete baperienced price and volume fluctuations tletehaffected and continue to affect
market prices of equity securities of many companiehese fluctuations often have been unrelatedigproportionate to the operat
performance of those companies. These broad markkindustry fluctuations, as well as general eogdnppolitical, and market conditiot
such as recessions, interest rate changes oratitaral currency fluctuations, may negatively affféee market price of our common stock
the past, many companies that have experiencedlitglen the market price of their stock have bemibject to securities class action litigat
We may be thdarget of this type of litigation in the future. Geities litigation against us could result in stamial costs and divert ¢
management's attention from other business conoehish could seriously harm our business.
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Our future results will be impacted by our abilityimplement our internal growth strategy.

Our future results will depend in part on our sscen implementing our internal growth strategy,ickhincludes expanding our exist
geographic areas, selling additional products tstierg customers and adding new customers. Ouityabilimplement this strategy will depe
on our success in selling more products and sesviceexisting customers, acquiring new customeiringh qualified sales persons, ¢
marketing integrated forms of supply management sscthose being pursued by us through our Smat&8¥ program. Although we intel
to increase sales and product offerings to existirglomers, there can be no assurance that wbendlliccessful in these efforts.

Risks Associated With Acquisition Strat

Our future results will depend in part on our dpilio successfully implement our acquisition stggteWe may not be able to consumn
acquisitions at rates similar to the past, whiclhildcadversely impact our growth rate and our stpdke. This strategy includes tak
advantage of a consolidation trend in the induatrg effecting acquisitions of businesses with cemgntary or desirable new product lil
strategic distribution locations, attractive cuséwnibases or manufacturer relationships. Promisicguisitions are difficult to identify a
complete for a number of reasons, including higliations, competition among prospective buyersntwed for regulatory (including antitru
approvals and the availability of affordable furglim the capital markets. In addition, competitifmn acquisitions in our business area
significant and may result in higher purchase icghanges in accounting or regulatory requirementsstability in the credit markets co
also adversely impact our ability to consummateuaitipns. In addition, acquisitions involve a nuentof special risks, including possi
adverse effects on our operating results, diversiomanagemens’ attention, failure to retain key personnel of #oguired business, ris
associated with unanticipated events or liabiljtarsd expenses associated with obsolete invenfay acquired business, some or all of w
could have a material adverse effect on our busjrfesancial condition and results of operatio@ur ability to grow at or above our histc
rates depends in part upon our ability to identififd successfully acquire and integrate companidsbasinesses at appropriate prices
realize anticipated cost savings.

Risks Related to Acquisition Financi

We may need to finance acquisitions by using shaff€ommon Stock for a portion or all of the corsation to be paid. In the event that
Common Stock does not maintain a sufficient mavkéite, or potential acquisition candidates are rotts® unwilling to accept Common St
as part of the consideration for the sale of thesinesses, we may be required to use more ofamlr sources, if available, to maintain
acquisition program. These cash resources maydadborrowings under our credit agreement or equrityebt financings. . Our current cre
agreement with our bank lenders contains certastrictions that could adversely affect our ability implement and finance poten
acquisitions. Such restrictions include a provigiwohibiting us from merging or consolidating withr acquiring all or a substantial part of
properties or capital stock of, any other entityhout the prior written consent of the lenders.efEhcan be no assurance that we will be al
obtain the lendes consent to any of our proposed acquisitionsvelfdo not have sufficient cash resources, our drmetld be limited unle
we are able to obtain additional capital throughtde equity financings.

Ability to Comply with Financial Covenants of CreBacility

Our credit facility requires the Company to compljth certain specified covenants, restrictionsafioial ratios and other financial ¢
operating tests. The Compasyability to comply with any of the foregoing restions will depend on its future performance, whigill be
subject to prevailing economic conditions and offaetors, including factors beyond the Compangontrol. A failure to comply with any
these obligations could result in an event of défander the credit facility, which could permitcateration of the Comparny'indebtedne:
under the credit facility. The Company from tinoetime has been unable to comply with some of ithenttial covenants contained in the cr
facility (relating to, among other things, the nmtaimance of prescribed financial ratios) amas, when necessary, obtained waivel
amendments to the covenants from its lenders. otth the Company expects to be able to comply thithcovenants, including the finan
covenants, of the credit facility, there can beassurance that in the future the Company will He &bdo so or, if is not able to do so, tha
lenders will be willing to waive such complianceforther amend such covenants.

11




Goodwill and intangible assets recorded as a resfitiur acquisitions could become impaired.

Goodwill represents the difference between thelmse price of acquired companies and the relateddhies of net assets acquired. We
goodwill for impairment annually and whenever egent changes in circumstances indicate that impaitnmay have occurred. As
December 31, 2010, our combined goodwill and intaagassets amounted to $86.3 million, net of aadated amortization. To the extent
do not generate sufficient cash flows to recover mlet amount of any investments in goodwill andeptimtangible assets recorded,
investment could be considered impaired and sulbjeetite-off. We expect to record further goodwill and otlirgangible assets as a resu
future acquisitions we may complete. Future amatitin of such other intangible assets or impairsehtny, of goodwill or intangible ass
would adversely affect our results of operationany given period.

Our business has substantial competition that cauleersely affect our results.

Our business is highly competitive. We compete \aithariety of industrial supply distributors, sowmfewhich may have greater financial
other resources than us. Although many of our ti@wil distribution competitors are small entergsisselling to customers in a limi
geographic area, we also compete with larger Higiors that provide integrated supply programs saghhose offered through outsourt
services similar to those that are offered by c06S$egment. Some of these large distributors neaghlte to supply their products in a v
timely and cosefficient manner than us. Our competitors inclué¢alog suppliers, large warehouse stores and, lesser extent, certe
manufacturers. Competitive pressures could adiyeasiect DXP’s sales and profitability.

The loss of or the failure to attract and retairylgersonnel could adversely impact our resultspefrations.

We will continue to be dependent to a significaxteat upon the efforts and ability of David R. lgttour Chairman of the Board, President
Chief Executive Officer. The loss of the servicédv. Little or any other executive officer of o@ompany could have a material adw
effect on our financial condition and results ofogtions. In addition, our ability to grow succedlsf will be dependent upon our ability
attract and retain qualified management and teehmicd operational personnel. The failure to attese retain such persons could mater
adversely affect our financial condition and reswoit operations.

The loss of any key supplier could adversely affed®’s sales and profitability.

We have distribution rights for certain productelinand depend on these distribution rights forbestamtial portion of our business. Many
these distribution rights are pursuant to contrs are subject to cancellation upon little ompmi@r notice. Although we believe that we cc
obtain alternate distribution rights in the evehsach a cancellation, the termination or limitatiy any key supplier of its relationship with
Company could result in a temporary disruption of business and, in turn, could adversely affect regults of operations and finan
condition.

A slowdown in the economy could negatively impa¢®’s sales growth.
Economic and industry trends affect DXRusiness. Demand for our products is subjeectmomic trends affecting our customers ani
industries in which they compete in particular. iylaf these industries, such as the oil and gassing, are subject to volatility while othe

such as the petrochemical industry, are cyclicdl rmaterially affected by changes in the economg.aAesult, demand for our products ci
be adversely impacted by changes in the marketaroéustomers.
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Interruptions in the proper functioning of our imfoation systems could disrupt operations and canseeases in costs and/or decrease
revenues.

The proper functioning of DXP’s information systeiisscritical to the successful operation of ouribass. Although DXR informatiol
systems are protected through physical and softwafeguards and remote processing capabilitieg, exis information systems are ¢
vulnerable to natural disasters, power losses;detenunication failures and other problems. Ificaitinformation systems fail or are otherw
unavailable, DXPs ability to procure products to sell, process sinigp customer orders, identify business opportesitimaintain proper lew
of inventories, collect accounts receivable andgagounts payable and expenses could be adveffdyea.

ITEM 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments
None.
ITEM 2. Properties

We own our headquarters facility in Houston, Texelsich has approximately 48,000 square feet otefipace. The Service Centers seg
owns or leases 112 facilities located in Alabam&zadna, Arkansas, California, Colorado, Florida,08ga, Idaho, lllinois, Indiana, low
Kansas, Kentucky, Louisiana, Maryland, Massachsiséfinnesota, Mississippi, Missouri, Montana, Nalteg Nevada, New Jersey, N
Mexico, New York, North Carolina, North Dakota, ©@hOklahoma, Pennsylvania, South Dakota, Tenne3se@s, Utah, Virginia, Wyomir
and Sonora, Mexico. The Supply Chain Services sagmperates supply chain installations in 52 of oustomers’facilities in Alabame
Arkansas, Arizona, California, Florida, Georgidinbis, Indiana, Louisiana, Maryland, MassachusdiWghigan, Missouri, Nebraska, N
Jersey, New York, North Carolina, Ohio, Oklahomae@on, Pennsylvania, South Carolina, TennesseesJa#rginia, and Wisconsin. T
Innovative Pumping Solutions segment operates bétfacilities located in Texas, Louisiana and Nediia. Our owned facilities range fr
5,000 square feet to 65,000 square feet in sizeled&e facilities for terms generally ranging frome to thirteen years. The leased facil
range from 1,500 square feet to 170,000 squareirfegize. The leases provide for periodic spedifiental payments and certain lease:!
renewable at our option. We believe that our itéed are suitable and adequate for the needs éxating business. We believe that if
leases for any of our facilities were not renewetther suitable facilities could be leased with natenial adverse effect on our busin
financial condition or results of operations. Offiehe facilities owned by us is pledged to secweindebtedness.

ITEM 3. Legal Proceedings

On July 22, 2004, DXP and Ameron International @oation, DXP’s vendor of fiberglass reinforced pipeere sued in the Twenfourtt
Judicial District Court, Parish of Jefferson, Staté ouisiana by BP America Production Company rdiey the failure of Bondstrand PSX J
pipe, a recently introduced type of fiberglass fiiced pipe which had been installed on four engrgyduction platforms. BP Americ
Production Company alleges negligence, breachmffact, breach of warranty and that damages ex$2@dnillion. DXP believes the failur
were caused by the failure of the pipe itself antlby work performed by DXP. We intend to vigorlyudefend these claims. Our insura
carrier has agreed, under a reservation of rightdeny coverage, to provide a defense against ttlagas. The maximum amount of
insurance coverage, if any, is $6 million. Undertain circumstances, our insurance may not causrctaim. DXP currently believes that 1
claim is without merit.

From time to time, the Company is a party to veasitegal proceedings arising in the ordinary cowifsiés business. The Company believes
the outcome of any of these various proceedings vait have a material adverse effect on its businésancial condition or results
operations.

ITEM 4. (Reserved)
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PART I

ITEM 5. Market for the Registrant's Common Equity, Relat&lockholder Matters an
Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

Our common stock trades on The NASDAQ Global Matketer the stock symbol "DXPE".

The following table sets forth on a per share besishigh and low sales prices for our common saxkeported by NASDAQ for the peric
indicated.

High Low

2009

First Quartel $ 15.84 $ 8.47
Second Quarte $ 16.40 $ 9.52
Third Quartel $ 12.44 $ 9.21
Fourth Quarte $ 13.36 $ 10.48
2010

First Quarte $ 13.59 $ 10.75
Second Quarte $ 17.98 $ 11.25
Third Quartel $ 21.59 $ 14.84
Fourth Quarte $ 24.76 $ 17.61

On March 11, 2011, we had approximately 521 holdénecord for outstanding shares of our commoukstdrhis number does not inclt
shareholders for whom shares are held in “nomioeéstreet name”.

We anticipate that future earnings will be retainedinance the continuing development of our bes@ In addition, our bank credit faci
prohibits us from declaring or paying any cash dkvids or other distributions on our capital stogkept for the monthly $0.50 per sh
dividend on our Series B convertible preferred Istathich amounts to $90,000 in the aggregate par.y&ccordingly, we do not anticip:
paying cash dividends on our common stock in thesieeable future. The payment of any future divddenill be at the discretion of our Boi
of Directors and will depend upon, among other gijnfuture earnings, the success of our busineBgiti@s, regulatory and capi
requirements, lenders, and general financial arsihkss conditions.

Stock Performance
The following performance graph compares the peréorce of DXP Common Stock to the NASDAQ Industtiadlex and the NASDA

Composite (US). The graph assumes that the vdltreednvestment in DXP Common Stock and in eaclexwas $100 at December 31, 2
and that all dividends were reinvested.
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Equity Compensation Table

The following table provides information regardisigares covered by the Company’s equity compenspléots as of December 31, 2010:

Number of
securities
Number remaining
of Shares Weighted available for
to be issued average Non-vested future issuanc
on exercise of exercise pric restricted Weighted under equity
outstanding of outstandin ~ shares average compensation
Plan categor options options  outstandin¢ grant price plans
Equity compensation plans
approved by shareholde N/A N/A 180,05t $16.1¢ 165,389
Equity compensation plans not
approved by shareholde N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
Total N/A N/A 180,05¢ $16.1¢ 165,3891)
(1) Represents shares of common stock authoraeidfuance under the 2005 Restricted Stock |
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ITEM 6. Selected Financial Data

The selected historical consolidated financial dataforth below for each of the years in the fjgayr period ended December 31, 201C
been derived from our audited consolidated findnstatements. This information should be read amjunction with "Managemen
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition &®sults of Operations” and the consolidated firglrgtatements and notes thereto inclt
elsewhere in this Report.

Years Ended December :

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
Restate(d) Restated) Restated®)

(in thousands, except per share amot

Consolidated Statement of Earnings D

Sales $ 279,821 $ 44454 $ 736,88 $ 583,220 $ 656,20
Gross Profil 78,62: 125,69. 206,98¢ 151,41- 188,39!
Operating income (los: 20,67¢ 31,89: 48,19 (49,332 37,09:
Income (loss) before income tay 19,40« 28,89’ 42,28¢ (54,482 32,13:
Net income (loss 11,92 17,34% 25,88 (42,412 19,38
Per share amoun
Basic earnings (loss) per common st $ 1.1 $ 1.4 $ 19 $ (324 $ 1.4
Common shares outstandi 10,127 11,81: 12,94 13,115 13,82:
Diluted earnings (loss) per sh: $ 1.0 $ 13 $ 18 $ (324 $ 1.3
Common and common equivalent share
outstanding 11,45( 12,86( 13,86¢ 13,11: 14,82

Q) Basic and diluted earnings per share amcwunis been restated due to adoption in the first
quarter of 2009 of authoritative guidance whichuieggs awards of unvested restricted stock to be
treated as if outstanding in the calculation ohesgs per share.

(2) The goodwill and other intangibles impairmehérge and the Precision inventory
impairment charge in 2009 reduced operating incbyn$66.8 million and increased basic and diluted
loss per share by $3.€

Consolidated Balance Sheet D As of December 31

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
Total asset $ 11881 $ 288,170 $ 397,85 $ 270,92 $ 320,62
Long-term debt obligation 35,17« 101,98 154,59: 102,91¢ 103,62!
Shareholdel equity 36,92( 102,71: 130,18t 90,21 124,12(

ITEM 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financiab@dition and Results of Operations

The following discussion and analysis should bedrgaconjunction with the Consolidated Financiaat®ments and related notes contai
elsewhere in this Report.

General Overview

Our products and services are marketed in at #astates in the United States and Sonora, Megicvér 40,000 customers that are eng
in a variety of industries, many of which may beicrcyclical to each other. Demand for our progggnerally is subject to changes in
United States and global economy and economic $raffécting our customers and the industries inctvithey compete in particular. Cert
of these industries, such as the oil and gas ingluste subject to volatility while others, suchtlas petrochemical industry and the construt
industry, are cyclical and materially affected hanges in the United States and global economya Assult, we may experience change
demand within particular markets, segments anduymochategories as changes occur in our custonessective markets.
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During 2006 the general economy and the oil andeyaoration and production business continuedetgdsitive. Our employee headcc
increased by 45% as a result of four acquisitiom$ kiring additional personnel to support increasals. The majority of the 2006 si
increase came from a broadsed increase in sales of pumps, bearings, safedyicts and industrial supplies to customers esgyay oilfielc
service, oil and gas production, mining, electyigieneration and petrochemical processing. Safethd four businesses acquired in 2
accounted for $11.8 million of the $94.5 milliond®sales increase.

During 2007 the general economy and the oil andegptoration and production business continuedet@dsitive. During 2007 our headcc
increased by 112% primarily as a result of threguesitions. Sales by the three businesses acquird@07 accounted for $92.3 million of
$164.7 million sales increase. The 2007 salesas®, excluding sales of businesses acquired in, 268ulted from a broad based increa:
sales by our service centers, innovative pumpitgtiso locations and supply chain locations.

During 2008 the general economy weakened. Howelrerpil and gas exploration and production busimesdinued to be positive during
first half of 2008, before declining during the sed half of 2008. During 2008 our headcount incedalsy 18% primarily as a result of th
acquisitions. Sales by the three businesses adqiir2008 accounted for $33.4 million of the $29tBlion 2008 sales increase. The 2
sales increase, excluding sales of businessesraddguni 2008, resulted from a brohdsed increase in sales by our service centersydtine
pumping solution locations and supply chain loazgio

During 2009 the general economy and the oil andegatoration and production business declined &iamtly. During 2009 our headcol
decreased by approximately 10% as a result of rretiaken to reduce operating costs. Sales for #e@bned by 21% from 2008. Sales
businesses acquired during 2008, on a same sttm® Isasis, accounted for $36.1 million of 2010 sakexcluding these sales by acqu
businesses, sales declined by 26% from 2008. TQ8 gales decline is primarily due to a brdmded decline in the sales of pumps, beal
safety products and industrial supplies in conoectivith a broadased decline in the U.S. economy. This econoredint led to th
impairment of goodwill and other intangibles. [hgr the fourth quarter of 2009 the Company recogphian impairment charge of $5
million for goodwill and other intangibles and amgairment charge of $13.8 million to reduce theustibn of inventory acquired in t
acquisition of Precision. The impairment chargisrbt result in any cash expenditures, did noteaskely affect compliance with covene
under our credit facility, and did not affect oast position or cash flows from operating actigitie

During 2010 the general economy and the oil andeygdoration and production business improved. €@uployee headcount increasec
approximately 7% as a result of two acquisitioBxcluding the employees at the two acquired busesbeadcount declined by approxime
1%, primarily as a result of consolidating backiag#ffunctions. Sales by Quadna, acquired Apri2@10 and D&F, acquired Decembe
2010, accounted for $43.6 million of 2010 salegclé&ding Quadna and D&F sales, sales for 2010 aszd 5.0%.

Our sales growth strategy in recent years has &tos internal growth and acquisitions. Key elers@iftour sales strategy include levera
existing customer relationships by crasdling new products, expanding product offeringsnew and existing customers, and incree
business-tdsusiness solutions using system agreements andyscipgin solutions for our integrated supply custosn We will continue 1
review opportunities to grow through the acquisitif distributors and other businesses that woxfthed our geographic breadth and/or
additional products and services. Our resultsaapend on our success in executing our intermalihr strategy and, to the extent we comj
any acquisitions, our ability to integrate suchuasitjions effectively.

Our strategies to increase productivity includesmidated purchasing programs, centralizing prodiisttibution centers, and customer ser

and inside sales functions, converting selectedtiogs from full warehouse and customer serviceraifmns to service centers, and u:
information technology to increase employee progitgt
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Results of Operations

Years Ended December :

2008
Restated % 2009() % 2010 %
(in millions, except percentages and per share atsy

Sales $736.¢ 100.C $583.. 100.C $656.. 100.(
Cost of sale: 529.¢  71.C 431.¢ 74.C 467.¢ 71.%
Gross profil 207.C  28.1 151.¢ 26.C 188.< 28.7
Selling, general & administrative exper 158.6 21.¢ 147.¢ 25.8 151.c 23.1
Goodwill and other intangibles impairme 53.( 9.1 - -
Operating income (lost 48.2 6.5 (49.3 (8.5) 37.1 5.7
Interest expens 6.1 0.8 5.2 0.9 5.2 0.8
Other income (0.2) - (0.1) - (0.2 -
Income (loss) before income tay 42.% 5.7 (54.5 (9.3) 32.1 4.¢
Provision (benefit) for income tax 16.4 2.2 (12.1 (2.1) 12.7 2.C
Net income (loss $ 25.¢ 3.5% $(42.4  (7.3% $ 19. 3.C
Per shart

Basic earnings (loss) per sh $ 1.9¢ $(3.24 $ 1.4

Diluted earnings (loss) per shi $ 1.8 $(3.24 $ 1.3

@ Basic and diluted earnings per share amdcuwais been restated due to adoption in the firsttguaf
2009 of authoritative guidance which requires awartunvested restricted stock to be treated astéftanding
in the calculation of earnings per share.

(2)  The goodwill and other intangibles impairmeharge and the Precision inventory impairmentgan
2009 reduced operating income by $66.8 million ewedeased basic and diluted loss per share by $

DXP management has modified how it manages anduatesl the segments of our business. DXP is nownargd into three busine
segments: Service Centers, Supply Chain Servi&3S”’) and Innovative Pumping Solutions (“IPS™he Service Centers are engage
providing maintenance, repair and operating prajuetjuipment and services, including logistics bdji@s, to industrial customers. T
Service Centers provide a wide range of MRO praslicthe rotating equipment, bearing, power trassion equipment, fastener, indus
supplies and safety product categories. The IB8eet fabricates and assembles custoage engineered pump packages. The SCS se
manages all or part of customsupply chain, including inventory. The 2009 2008 segment information has been restated to oonfoth
the 2010 composition of reportable segments.

Year Ended December 31, 2010 compared to Year End&kcember 31, 2009

SALES. Sales for the year ended December 31, R@t8ased $73.0 million, or 12.5%, to approximatdp6.2 million from $583.2 million
2009. Sales by Quadna, acquired April 1, 2010 a&#,Cacquired December 1, 2010, accounted for $48l6on of 2010 sales. Excludii
Quadna and D&F sales, sales for 2010 increased.5%4es for the Service Centers segment incred8&d million, or 15.8%. Excludit
Quadna and D&F Service Centers sales of $26.2amjlibervice Centers segment sales for 2010 inaleh486 from 2009. This sales incre
is primarily due to improvement in the industriarpon of the U.S. economy. Sales for the SCS seyrdecreased by $9.8 million, or 7.:
from 2009. The sales decrease by SCS resulted $ed@s to customers in 2009 which subsequentlyiteted supply agreements, excee
sales to customers which had been added since 284l8s for the IPS segment increased by $21.1omilbr 37.8%, for 2010 when compa
to 2009. Excluding Quadna IPS sales of $17.4 onillior 2010, IPS sales increased 6.6% from 200% Jales increase resulted from
improvement in the economy and the associatedasera capital spending by our customers.

GROSS PROFIT. Gross profit as a percentage of satesased to approximately 28.7% for 2010 from02&.for 2009. This increase
primarily the result of the $13.8 million chargethre fourth quarter of 2009 to reduce the valuéweéntory acquired with the acquisition
Precision on September 10, 2007. Excluding thi8.&Imillion charge, gross profit as a percentage of sales 368 2vould have be:
28.3%. The increase in gross profit as a percentdgales in 2010 from this 28.3% for 2009 is ity the result of improvement in the U
economy.
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SELLING, GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSE. Selfig, general and administrative expense for 201@ased by
approximately $3.5 million, or 2.4%, when compate@009. Selling, general and administrative expdos Quadna and D&F for 2010 was
$7.6 million. As a percentage of revenue, the 28fense decreased to 23.1%, from 25.3% for 200@is decrease is primarily the result of
sales increasing 12.5% and expenses increasin@2aty.

OPERATING INCOME. Excluding the effect of the $&3million inventory impairment charge and the $5&@lion goodwill and othe
intangible impairment charges recorded in 2009 ratpey income for 2010 increased 112% compared0@92 Operating income for t
Service Centers segment increased $26.2 milliortluding the effect of the $12.8 million of invemgoimpairment charges recorded by
Service Centers segment during 2009, operatingnmiecfor the Service Centers segment increased 3&Q&oresult of the 15.8% increas
sales combined with the effect of cost reductiomsoees implemented during 2009 and 2010. Operataame for the SCS segment incre:
28.3%. Excluding the $1.0 million of inventory iaipment charges recorded by the SCS segment dR€i68, operating income for the S
segment increased by 8.7%, primarily as a resuthefreduced administrative costs for this segm®perating income for the IPS segn
increased 37.5% as a result of the 37.8% increasalés.

INTEREST EXPENSE. Interest expense for 2010 deeddy 0.7% from 2009. On March 15, 2010 we areéralr credit facility. Th
amendment significantly increased the interestsrated commitment fees applicable at various leveragios from levels in effect befc
March 15, 2010. The amendment increased the €dshds borrowed under our credit facility by apgroately 200 basis points beginning
March 16, 2010. This increase in interest rates oftset by the effect of lower average debt ountditag during 2010 compared to 2009.

INCOME TAXES. Our provision for income taxes diféel from the U. S. statutory rate of 35% due toestacome taxes and nateductibli
expenses. Our effective tax rate for 2010 of 39iAékeased from 22.2% for 2009. The 2009 tax wate unusually low primarily as a resul
the non-deductible goodwill and other intangiblegpairment charge for PFI, LLC recorded in 2009.

Year Ended December 31, 2009 Compared to Year Erdecember 31, 2008

SALES. Sales for the year ended December 31, 8868ased $153.7 million, or 20.9%, to approxinya$8i83.2 million from $736.9 millic

in 2008. Sales for the Service Centers segmenedsed $79.1 million, or 16.8%, to $391.1 million fioe year ended December 31, 2009, -
$470.2 million for 2008. Sales by businesses aeduin 2008, on a same store sales basis, accolant®d6.1 million of 2009 sales. Exclud
these sales by the acquired businesses, saldsef@etrvice Centers segment decreased 24.5%. dlbs decrease is primarily due to a broad-
based decrease in sales of pumps, bearings, gafedyicts and industrial supplies in connection vétibroadeased decline in the U.
economy. Sales for the Supply Chain Services segdemmeased by $29.6 million, or 17.8%, to $136illon for the year ended December
2009 from $165.8 million for 2008, resulting fromet decline in the U. S. economy. Sales for thrvative Pumping Solutions segm
decreased by $45.0 million, or 44.6%, to $55.9ianilfor the year ended December 31, 2009 from ®Ladlion for 2008 due to the decline

the U.S. economy.

GROSS PROFIT. Gross profit as a percentage of sldeseased by approximately 2.1% for 2009, to 26ff%n 28.1% for 2008. TF
decrease is the result of the $13.8 million charg®009 to reduce the value of inventory acquirecconnection with the acquisition
Precision on September 10, 2007.

SELLING, GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE. Selling, genal and administrative expense for 2009 decreagedpproximately $11
million to $147.8 million from $158.8 million for @D8. Selling, general and administrative expensoaated with the three busines
acquired in 2008, on a same store basis, accounte@11.2 million of the 2009 expense. On a sanwesbasis, selling, general :
administrative expense decreased approximate2$P#lion. This decrease primarily resulted froeduced salaries, incentive compensa
employee benefits and travel expenses compare@@8. 2As a percentage of sales, the 2009 expemseased by approximately 3.8%
25.3% for 2009 from 21.6% for 2008. This incre&s@rimarily the result of sales decreasing moanttelling, general and administrat
expenses decreased combined with the effect ofimec$1.8 million of future rent and related expenassociated with locations closed du
20009.
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GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLES IMPAIRMENT. During he fourth quarter of 2009, the Company performedahnual goodwi
impairment test based on current and expected madlitions, including reduced operating resuls. a result of this test, the Comp.
determined that goodwill and other intangibles aided with the Service Centers segment reportitits were impaired as of December
2009. Accordingly, the Company recognized an impant charge of $53.0 million for goodwill and otletangibles.

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS). Operating loss for 2009s1/$49.3 million compared to $48.2 million of ina®rfor 2008 as a result o
$55.6 million decrease in gross profit and the @58illion impairment charge, partially offset by &h1.0 million decrease in selling, gen
and administrative expense. Operating incomehferService Centers segment was $24.4 million f@@2bmpared to $68.0 million for 20!
primarily as a result of decreased gross profia agsult of decreased sales and the $12.8 milligaritory impairment charge recorded in
Service Centers segment during 2009. Excluding®th® million inventory impairment charge recordadthe SCS segment during 2C
operating income for the Supply Chain Services ssgrmcreased 21.2%, to $6.5 million for 2009, fr84 million for 2008, primarily as
result of increased gross profit. Operating incdorethe Innovative Pumping Solutions segment desed 37.2%, to $7.5 million for 20i
from $12.0 million for 2008 as a result of decrebgeoss profit due to decreased sales.

INTEREST EXPENSE. Interest expense for 2009 deewdy 14.4% from 2008. This decrease primariulted from decreased mar
interest rates.

OTHER INCOME. Other income for 2009 decreasedd $nillion from $0.2 million for 2008 as a resaftreduced interest income.
INCOME TAXES. Our provision for income taxes diféel from the U. S. statutory rate of 35% due téestacome taxes and nateductible
expenses. Our effective tax rate for 2009 decrbs@2.2% from 38.8% for 2008 primarily as a resfithe nondeductible impairment char
for PFI, LLC goodwill and other intangibles recodda 2009.

Pro Forma Results

The pro forma unaudited results of operations fer Company on a consolidated basis for the yeatsde®ecember 31, 2009 and 2(
assuming the acquisition of businesses complet2010 were consummated as of January 1 of eacHoleaws:

Years Ended
December 31

2009 2010
(Unaudited)
In Thousands
except for per share de

Net Sales $ 653,17 $689,67!
Net (loss) incom $(39,967 $ 20,84
Per Share Dat

Basic Earning: $(3.04 $1.5(
Diluted Earnings $(3.04 $1.47
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Liquidity and Capital Resources
General Overview

As a distributor of MRO products and services, eguire significant amounts of working capital teduinventories and accounts receive
Additional cash is required for capital items swchinformation technology and warehouse equipmafet.also require cash to pay our le
obligations and to service our debt.

We generated approximately $23.9 million of casbperating activities in 2010 as compared to geimgr&#$51.6 million in 2009. This chan
between the two years was primarily attributabletite $24.1 million decrease in accounts receivalnid the $32.7 million reduction
inventories in 2009 compared to a $14.5 milliorréase in accounts receivable and a $2.0 milliomedese in inventories in 2010.

During 2010 we paid $18.2 million of cash relatedte purchase of two businesses during 2010 ar®rillion related to businesses acqu
before 2009 compared to paying $0.5 million du0@9 related to acquisitions completed prior to200

We purchased approximately $1.2 million of capéssets during 2010 compared to $1.6 million for®20Capital expenditures during 2(
and 2009 were related primarily to computer equiptneomputer software, production equipment, inegnhandling equipment, safety rei
equipment and building improvements. Capital exjienes for 2011 are expected to be in the rangbe2008, 2009 and 2010 amounts.

At December 31, 2010, our total long-term debt|udimg the current portion, was $114.6 million camgd to total capitalization (total long-
term debt plus shareholdeejuity) of $238.7 million. Approximately $109.8 lfitn of this outstanding debt bears interest atowes floating
rates. Therefore, as an example, a 200 basis pmirdase in interest rates would increase our @ninterest expense by approximately ¢
million.

Our normal trade terms for our customers requisernt within 30 days of invoice date. In respottseompetition and customer demands
will offer extended terms to selected customerdigibod credit history. Customers that are findhcistrong tend to request extended te
more often than customers that are not financitlgng. Many of our customers, including compatfiged in the Fortune 500, do not pay
within stated terms for a variety of reasons, idelg a general business philosophy to pay vendolata as possible.

During 2010, the amount available to be borrowedenrour credit facility increased from $37.3 mifliat December 31, 2009, to $50.0 mil
at December 31, 2010. The increase in availabdifyrimarily the result of the effect of increassztounts receivable. Our total lotegm dek
decreased $1.0 million during 2010. Managemeriebes$ that the liquidity of our balance sheet atéeber 31, 2010, provides us with
ability to meet our working capital needs, schedyleincipal payments, capital expenditures andeSeBi convertible preferred stock divid
payments during 2011.

Credit Facility

On August 28, 2008, DXP entered into a credit ageyd with Wells Fargo Bank, National Associatios,l@ad arranger and administra
agent for the lenders (thé&d&cility). The March 15, 2010 amendment to theilfacignificantly increased the interest ratesdlamommitmer
fees applicable at various leverage ratios fronelewn effect before March 15, 2010. The Facitignsists of a $50 million term loan an
revolving credit facility that provides a $150 rioh line of credit to the Company. The term loaguiees principal payments of $2.5 million
quarter. The Facility matures on August 11, 20TBe Facility contains financial covenants definiragious financial measures and level
these measures with which the Company must cong@yenant compliance is assessed as of each geadeand certain month ends for
asset test. The asset test is defined under ttibtfFas the sum of 85% of the Compasyiet accounts receivable, 60% of net inventory
50% of the net book value of non-real-estate ptgpand equipment. The Comparmyborrowing and letter of credit capacity under
revolving credit portion of the Facility at any giv time is $150 million less borrowing under thealging credit portion of the Facility a
letters of credit outstanding, subject to the atssttdescribed above.
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On December 31, 2010, the LIBOR-based rate onabaving credit portion of the Facility was LIBORug 2.75%, the priméased rate on tl
revolving credit portion of the Facility was thdme rate plus 1.75%, the commitment fee was 0.376&0l.IBOR-based rate for the term loan
was LIBOR plus 3.25% and the prime-based ratehfetérm loan was the prime rate plus 2.25%. At bdosr 31, 2010, $103.5 million was
borrowed under the Facility at a weighted averagerést rate of approximately 3.2% under the LIB@iRons. The revolving credit portion of
the Facility provides the option of interest at OB plus a margin ranging from 2.25% to 4.00% dhatprime rate plus a margin of 1.25% to
3.00%. Commitment fees of 0.25% to 0.625% per amate payable on the portion of the Facility cafyacot in use for borrowings or letters
of credit at any given time. The term loan portajrthe Facility provides the option of interest #88OR plus a margin ranging from 2.75% to
4.50% or at the prime rate plus a margin of 1.76%.50%. Borrowings under the Facility are securmgall of the Company’s accounts
receivable, inventory, general intangibles and real-estate property and equipment. At Decembg2@10, we had $50.0 million available
for borrowing and letters of credit under the Hagcil

The Facility’s principal financial covenants inckud

Fixed Charge Coverage Rati— The Facility requires that the Fixed Charge CoverRgtio for the 12nonth period ending on the last da
each quarter through December 31, 2010 be nothess1.25 to 1.0, stepping up to 1.50 to 1.0 faheguarter ending on or after March
2011, with “Fixed Charge Coverage Ratigfined as the ratio of (a) EBITDA (as defined béldor the 12 months ending on such date, v
cash taxes and minus capital expenditures for geeiod (excluding acquisitions) to (b) the aggregef interest expense paid in c:
scheduled principal payments in respect of longitdebt and current portion of capital leases fahsu2month period, determined in e:
case on a consolidated basis for DXP and its sisiad.

Leverage Ratio- The Facility requires that the Compasy’everage Ratio, determined at the end of eachlfguarter, not exceed 4.00 to 1
as of December 31, 2010, 3.50 to 1.00 as of Mafgh2811 and 3.25 to 1.0 as of the last day of dizchl quarter thereafter. The Lever
Ratio is defined as the outstanding Indebtednesidatl by EBITDA for the 12 months then ended. AgcBmber 31, 2010, the Company’
Leverage Ratio was 2.26 to 1.00. The Facility neguthat the Company’Senior Leverage Ratio, determined at the encdf &scal quarte
not exceed 3.25 to 1.0 as of December 31, 201@, ¥8...00 as of March 31, 2011 and 2.75 to 1.0fabelast day of each fiscal qua
thereafter. The Senior Leverage Ratio is defireetha outstanding Indebtedness, minus the aggregatent of all Subordinated Debt, divit
by EBITDA for the 12 months then ended. At Decem®®, 2010, the Comparg/Senior Leverage Ratio was 2.20 to 1.00. Indelgtesli
defined under the Facility for financial covenantgoses as: (a) all obligations of DXP for borrowedney including but not limited to sen
bank debt, senior notes and subordinated debta}al leases; (c) issued and outstanding lettecsedit; and (d) contingent obligations
funded indebtedness. Subordinated Debt is defimeder the Facility for financial covenant purposes Indebtedness which has t
subordinated on terms and conditions satisfactotii¢ Lenders.
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The following are computations of the Leverage ®atid the Senior Leverage Ratio as of Decembe2(BQ (in thousands, except for ratios):

Senior

Leverage Leverage
For the Year ended December 31, 2 Ratio Ratio
Income before taxe $32,13: $32,13:
Interest expens 5,20¢ 5,20¢
Depreciation and amortizatic 9,56¢ 9,56¢
Stock compensation exper 973 973
Pro forma acquisition EBITD; 3,72: 3,72
EBITDA of divestiture 13 13
Reduction of closed location accri (555 (555
(A Defined EBITDA $51,06: $51,06:
As of December 31, 201
Total lon¢-term debt $114,55. $114,55.
Letters of credit outstandir 933 93:
Less: Subordinated De (2,900 -
Defined Indebtednes $112,584(B) $115,484C)
Senior Leverage Ratio (B)/(4 2.2C
Leverage Ratio (C)/(A 2.2¢€

EBITDA as defined under the Facility for financ@venant purposes means, without duplication, fiyr @eriod the consolidated net incc
(excluding any extraordinary gains or losses) of FDElus, to the extent deducted in calculating chdated net income, depreciati
amortization, other non-cash items and non-recgritems (including, without limitation, impairmenharges, asset writgffs and accruals
respect of closed locations), interest expense tardexpense for taxes based on income and minutheteextent added in calculat
consolidated net income, any non-cash items aner@@urring items; provided that, if DXP acquires #tpiity interests or assets of any pe
during such period under circumstances permittedbuthe Facility, EBITDA shall be adjusted to gige forma effect to such acquisit
assuming that such transaction had occurred ofirghelay of such period and provided further thlaXP divests the equity interests or as

of any person during such period under circumstapegmitted under the Facility, EBITDA shall bewslgd to give pro forma effect to s
divestiture assuming that such transaction hadroedwn the first day of such period. Add-backeve¢d pursuant to Article 11, Regulation S-
X, of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, aldb be included in the calculation of EBITDA.

Performance Metric

December 31 Increase
2010 2009 (Decrease)
Days of sales outstanding (in da 57.t 50.1 7.4
Inventory turns 6.2 5.€ 3

Results for businesses acquired in 2010 were aizedaio compute these
performance metric:
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Accounts receivable days of sales outstanding Wé&rB at December 31, 2010 compared to 50.1 dajpee¢mber 31, 2009. The incre
resulted primarily from a change in customer mixahhresulted in slower collection of accounts reable. Annualized inventory turns w
6.2 times at December 31, 2010 compared to 5.%tah®ecember 31, 2009. The increase in invertons resulted from the improvemen
the U. S. economy.

Funding Commitment

We believe our cash generated from operations aaifahle under our Facility will meet our normal sking capital needs during the n
twelve months. However, we may require additionatbtdor equity financing to fund potential acquisits. Such additional financings n
include additional bank debt or the public or ptévaale of debt or equity securities. In connectidth any such financing, we may is
securities that substantially dilute the interedteur shareholders. We may not be able to oladiitional financing on acceptable terms,
all.

Borrowings
December 31 Increase
2010 2009 (Decrease)
(in thousands

Current portion of lon-term debt $ 10,93 $ 12,59% (1,665
Long-term debt, less current portir 103,62: 102,91¢ 70%
Total lon¢-term debr $ 114,55 $ 115513 (960
Amount available®) $ 50,02 $ 37,27$ 12,744

(1) Represents amount available to be borrowednthéd-acility at the indicated date.
(2) The funds used to reduce debt were obtainad &perations.

(3) The $12.7 million increase in the amount a\@das primarily a result of the effect of
increased accounts receivable on the loan coveatos.

Contractual Obligations

The impact that our contractual obligations as e€@mber 31, 2010 are expected to have on our liguddd cash flow in future periods is
follows (in thousands):

Payments Due by Peric
Less than 1 1-3 Years 3-5 More than ¢

Total Year Years Years
Long-term debt, including current portic $ 11455 $ 10,931 $101,30. $ 2,32( -
Operating lease obligatiol 38,52 10,47 14,697 6,401 6,952
Estimated interest paymer® 834 257 40€ 16¢ -
Total $ 153,900 $ 21,65 $116,400 $ 8,89( $ 6,95.

(1) Amounts represent the expected cash paymerdgardbngterm debt and do not include any fair vi
adjustment.

(2) Assumes interest rates in effect at Decembg@10. Assumes debt is paid on maturity date and n
replaced. Does not include interest on the revghiime of credit as borrowings under the Facility
fluctuate. The amounts of interest incurred forbwings under the revolving lines of credit were
$4,900,000, $4,700,000, and $4,900,000 for 20089 20d 2010, respectively. Management anticipates
increased level of interest payments on the Fa6iliR011 as a result of expected increased inteagss.
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Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

As part of our ongoing business, we do not pamitgpin transactions that generate relationshiph witconsolidated entities or finan:
partnerships, such as entities often referred &trastured finance or special purpose entitie®E'S"), which would have been establishet
the purpose of facilitating offalance sheet arrangements or other contractualtpw or limited purposes. As of December 31, 201® wer:
not involved in any unconsolidated SPE transactions

Indemnification

In the ordinary course of business, DXP enters auotractual arrangements under which DXP may atgreéedemnify customers from a
losses incurred relating to the services we perfoBuch indemnification obligations may not be sabfo maximum loss clauses. Historici
payments made related to these indemnities haveibeeaterial.

Discussion of Critical Accounting Policies

The preparation of financial statements in confeymiith accounting principles generally acceptedhiea United States of America require:
to make estimates and assumptions in determinimgegorted amounts of assets and

liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets hakilities at the date of the financial statenseand the reported amounts of revenues
expenses during the reporting period. The sigaificestimates made by us in the accompanying fiabetatements relate to reserves
accounts receivable collectability, inventory valoas, valuation of intangibles, impairment anadyshcome taxes, seifisured liability claim
and self-insured medical claims. Actual resultsldadiffer from those estimates. Management pecialt) reevaluates these estimates
events and circumstances change. Together withetfezts of the matters discussed above, theserfact@ay significantly impact tl
Company'’s results of operations from period-to-qeri

Critical accounting policies are those that arenbmbst important to the portrayal of a companfihancial position and results of operatis
and require managemesitsubjective or complex judgments. These politige been discussed with the Audit Committee ofBbard o
Directors of DXP. Below is a discussion of what Welieve are our critical accounting policies. ®lsee Note 1 of the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Revenue Recognitic

For binding agreements to fabricate tangible assetsustomer specifications, the Company recognieggnues using the percentag:
completion method. For other sales, the Compaoggmizes revenues when an agreement is in plaegyrite is fixed, title for product pas
to the customer or services have been providedcahectability is reasonably assured. Revenuesrecerded net of sales taxes. Reve
recognized include product sales and billings ferght and handling charges.

Allowance for Doubtful Accoun

Provisions to the allowance for doubtful accourres made monthly and adjustments are made peribdi@ed circumstances warrant) ba
upon the expected collectability of all such acdsurWriteoffs could be materially different from the resepr@vided if economic conditio
change or actual results deviate from historicidis.

Inventory

Inventory consists principally of finished goodslds priced at lower of cost or market, cost baletermined using the first-in, firstt (FIFO

method. Reserves are provided against inventargdtimated obsolescence based upon the aging déhtlentory and market trends. Ac!
obsolescence could be materially different fromréserve if economic conditions or market trendange significantly.
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Self-insured Insurance and Medical Claims

We generally retain up to $100,000 of risk for ealzim for workers compensation, general liabiltomobile and property loss. We aci
for the estimated loss on the silfured portion of these claims. The accrual jastdd quarterly based upon reported claims inftiona The
actual cost could deviate from the recorded esémat

We generally retain up to $200,000 of risk on eawsfdical claim for our employees and their depergleWie accrue for the estima
outstanding balance of unpaid medical claims fareyaployees and their dependents. The accruajisted monthly based on recent cle
experience. The actual claims could deviate freaent claims experience and be materially diffefiemh the reserve.

The accrual for these claims at December 31, 268®809 was approximately $1.8 million and $1.3ioml respectively.
Impairment of Lon-Lived Assets and Goodwill

Goodwill represents a significant portion of outatoassets. We review goodwill for impairment artyuduring our fourth quarter or mc
frequently if certain impairment indicators ariseder the provisions of authoritative guidance. \W&ew goodwill at the reporting unit lev
which is one level below an operating segment. @geiv the carrying value of the net assets of @apbrting unit to the net present valui
estimated discounted future cash flows of the mapgpunit. If the carrying value exceeds the neisent value of estimated discounted fL
cash flows, an impairment indicator exists and stinete of the impairment loss is calculated. Thie ¥alue calculation includes multi|
assumptions and estimates, including the projectsth flows and discount rates applied. Changehdset assumptions and estimates ¢
result in goodwill impairment that could materialigiversely impact our financial position or resatsoperations. Goodwill of $84.9 millic
was primarily recorded in connection with the 15asitions completed since 2004. Approximately $1éillion was included in o
Innovative Pumping Solutions segment and $68.%anillvas included in the two reporting units for @&ervice Centers segment which
DXP and PFI. Assets, liabilities, deferred taxad goodwill for each reporting unit were determinesing the balance sheets maintaine:
each reporting unit.

When estimating fair values of a reporting unit éor goodwill impairment test, we use an incomerapph which incorporates management’
views. The income approach provides an estimagd/élue based on each reporting unihticipated cash flows that are discounted us
weighted average cost of capital rate. The pringgumptions used in the income approach were astihtash flows and weighted avel
cost of capital. Estimated cash flows were prilgavased on projected revenues, operating costapitial expenditures and are discou
based on comparable industry average rates forntezigaverage cost of capital. We utilized discaates based on weighted average cc
capital ranging from 11.0% to 14.5% when we estadatair values of our reporting units as of DecemBg&, 2010. To ensure 1
reasonableness of the estimated fair values ofeporting units, we performed a reconciliation of dotal market capitalization to the tc
estimated fair value of all our reporting unitsheTassumptions used in estimating fair values pbnteng units and performing the good\
impairment test are inherently uncertain and reglimanagement judgment. The assumptions and nudtigpes used for valuing goodwill
the current year are consistent with those uséideimprior year.

During 2010 the U.S. and global economies stalulaed oil and natural gas prices increased, whidhd improvements in our sales, mar
and cash flows. Our sales and profitability imgrdwvthroughout the year. We considered the impathese changes in the economic
business climate as we performed our annual imgaitrassessment of goodwill as of December 31, 2010.

Our goodwill impairment analysis led us to concludat there was not an impairment of goodwill dgr2010. If we increased our disco

rates by 10%, or decreased our expected growth bgtd 0% when estimating the fair values of ouorépg units, there would not have b
an impairment of goodwill in 2010.
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LongHived assets, including property, plant and equiptrend amortizable intangible assets also comgis@nificant portion of our tot
assets. We evaluate the carrying value of llred assets when impairment indicators are presenivhen circumstances indicate -
impairment may exist under authoritative guidanéé¢hen management believes impairment indicators meigt, projections of tf
undiscounted future cash flows associated with ube of and eventual disposition of loliged assets held for use are prepared. |
projections indicate that the carrying values @& thng-lived assets are not recoverable, we retheearrying values to fair value. For long-
lived assets held for sale, we compare the carryaiges to an estimate of fair value less selliogt€ to determine potential impairment.
test for impairment of longjved assets at the lowest level for which casiwfi@are measurable. These impairment tests arelhéafiencec
by assumptions and estimates that are subjectangehas additional information becomes availaldle concluded DXP did not have
impairment of long-lived assets during 2010.

Purchase Accountin

The Company estimates the fair value of assetkjdimg property, machinery and equipment and thedated useful lives and salvage val
and liabilities when allocating the purchase pdtan acquisition.

Cost of Sales and Selling, General and Administeaixpense

Cost of sales includes product and product relatesds, inbound freight charges, internal transéests and depreciation. Selling, general
administrative expense includes purchasing andiviegecosts, inspection costs, warehousing costpretiation and amortization. DX’
gross margins may not be comparable to those ef @thtities, since some entities include all ofe¢bsts related to their distribution networ|
cost of sales and others like DXP exclude a portibthese costs from gross margin, including thetxm a line item, such as selling, ger
and administrative expense.

Income Taxe

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are adetp for differences between the financial statdnaem income tax bases of assets
liabilities. Such deferred income tax asset aalility computations are based on enacted tax kvdsrates applicable to periods in which
differences are expected to reverse. Valuatioowalhces are established to reduce deferred incamassets to the amounts expected
realized.

Stock-Based Compensation

No future grants will be made under the Comy's existing stock option plans. The Company cuiyenses restricted stock for shdrase:
compensation programs. Compensation expense reedgfor shardsased compensation programs in the years endedribece31, 200!
2009 and 2010 was $930,000, $1,555,000 and $973.@8fectively. Unrecognized compensation expander the Restricted Stock Plan
$2,601,000 and $2,423,000, respectively, at Dece®be2009 and 2010. As of December 31, 2010wéighted average period over wt
the unrecognized compensation expense is expertaglrecognized is 27.6 months.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

See Note 2 of the Notes to the Consolidated FimhStatements for discussion of recent accountingguncements.

Inflation

We do not believe the effects of inflation have ansterial adverse effect on our results of openatior financial condition. We attempt
minimize inflationary trends by passing manufaatyméce increases on to the customer wheneveripade.

ITEM 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about MakRisk
Our market risk results primarily from volatility interest rates. Our exposure to interest raterglates primarily to our debt portfolidJsing

floating interest rate debt outstanding at Decen83gr2010, a 100 basis point increase in interagsrwould increase our annual inte
expense by approximately $1.1 million.
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The table below provides information about the Camys market sensitive financial instruments andstitutes a forward-looking statement.

Principal Amount By Expected Maturity
(in thousands, except percentac

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 Thereafter Total Fair Value
Fixed Rate Longtermr
Debt $ 30 $ 30¢ $ 183 $ 190 $2,12 - $ 4750 & 4,75
Average InteresRate 5.44% 5.46% 6.12% 5.00% 5.00% -

Floating Rate
Long-term Debt  $10,63( $10,00( $89,16! - -

Average InteresRate
(1) 3.47% 3.52% 3.21% - - -
Total Maturities $10,93( $10,30¢ $90,99! $ 191 $ 2,12

$109,79!  $109,79!

$114,55.  $114,55

(1) Assumes floating interest rates in effect ac@nber 31, 2011

ITEM 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Reports of Independent Registered Public Accourfing Pzage
Management Report on Internal Contr 31
Consolidated Balance She: 32
Consolidated Statements of Operati 33
Consolidated Statements of Sharehol Equity 34
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flc 35
Notes to Consolidated Financial Stateme 36

28




REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of
DXP Enterprises, Inc., and Subsidiaries
Houston, Texas

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balaheets of DXP Enterprises, Inc. and Subsidiasesf December 31, 2009 and 2(
and the related consolidated statements of opemtishareholders' equity and cash flows for eacthefthree years in the period en
December 31, 2010. These consolidated financ@estents are the responsibility of the Company'sagement. Our responsibility is
express an opinion on these consolidated finastadéments based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with audisittondards of the Public Company Accounting OvéatsBpard (United States). The
standards require that we plan and perform thetaitmiobtain reasonable assurance about whethéindrecial statements are free of mate
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on tiliasis, evidence supporting the amounts and diss in the financial statements. An &
also includes assessing the accounting princigded and significant estimates made by managementethas evaluating the overall finan
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetaerferred to above present fairly, in all materégpects, the consolidated financial pos
of DXP Enterprises, Inc., and Subsidiaries at Ddmam31, 2009 and 2010, and the results of theiratip;s and their cash flows for each of
three years in the period ended December 31, 20@nformity with accounting principles generadlgcepted in the United States of Amer

We were engaged to audit, in accordance with thedsirds of the Public Company Accounting OversiBbard (United States), t
effectiveness of DXP Enterprises, Inc. and Subs&hlainternal control over financial reporting alsrecember 31, 2010, based on crit

established in Internal Control Integrated Framéwssued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organinatiaf the Treadway Commission. (
report dated March 16, 2011, expressed an ungeglifpinion on the effectiveness of internal contredr financial reporting.

Hein & Associates LLP
Houston, Texas

March 16, 2011
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of
DXP Enterprises, Inc.
Houston, Texas

We were engaged to audit DXP Enterprises, Inchie {(Company”)internal control over financial reporting based nmouiteria established
Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued lyy Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of theadweay Commission (“COSO”"Jhe
Companys management is responsible for maintaining effecinternal control over financial reporting andr fils assessment of |
effectiveness of internal control over financigbogting.

A companys internal control over financial reporting is @@ess designed to provide reasonable assuranaeliregthe reliability of financi:
reporting and the preparation of consolidated fom@nstatements for external purposes in accordavite accounting principles genere
accepted in the United States of America. A compautirpternal control over financial reporting inclsd#hose policies and procedures
(i) pertain to the maintenance of records thatessonable detail, accurately and fairly refleet ttansactions and dispositions of the ass¢
the company; (ii) provide reasonable assurance tthasactions are recorded as necessary to perepamtion of financial statements
accordance with accounting principles generallyepted in the United States of America, and thatipts and expenditures of the compan
being made only in accordance with authorizatiohsnanagement and directors of the company; aniipfiivide reasonable assura
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauitted acquisition, use, or disposition of the compa assets that could have a material €
on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohwver financial reporting may not prevent or détmisstatements. Also, projections of
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods atgext to the risk that controls may become inadégjbecause of changes in conditions, ol
the degree of compliance with the policies or pdates may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the Company maintained, in all mialerespects, effective internal control over fical reporting as of December 31, 2(
based on criteria established in Internal Contrivitegrated Framework issued by the Committee ohSpong Organizations of the Tready
Commission (“COSQO").

We have also audited, in accordance with the stasdaf the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@dnited States), the consolida
balance sheets of DXP Enterprises, Inc. as of DbeeRil, 2009 and 2010, and the related consolidattdments of operations, shareholders

equity, and cash flows for each of the years inttiree year period ended December 31, 2010. Ownrtrépereon dated March 16, 2(
expressed an unqualified opinion.

Hein & Associates LLP
Houston, Texas

March 16, 2011
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MANAGEMENT’'S REPORT
ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Company has assessed the effectiveness ofdataal control over financial reporting as of Dexdter 31, 2010 based on criteria establi
by Internal Control — Integrated Frameworliksued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatahthe Treadway Commission OSC
Framework”). The Compang’ management is responsible for establishing anéhtai@ing adequate internal controls over finar
reporting. The Company’s independent registerddipaccountants that audited the Comparfinancial statements as of December 31, :
have issued an attestation report on the Compamysnal control over financial reporting, whichpegars on page 30.

Internal control over financial reporting is a peas designed by, or under the supervision of, gpeoyis principal executive and princij
financial officers, and effected by the Companyjoard of directors, management and other per§otmerovide reasonable assurs
regarding the reliability of financial reporting éthe preparation of financial statements for exakipurposes in accordance with gene
accepted accounting principles. A companiyiternal control over financial reporting inclgdnose policies and procedures that (1) pert:
the maintenance of records that, in reasonablél detaurately and fairly reflect the transacti@s dispositions of the assets of the comg
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactimnsecorded as necessary to permit preparatidimaricial statements in accordance \
generally accepted accounting principles, and teatipts and expenditures of the company are beiage only in accordance w
authorizations of management and directors of trepany; and (3) provide reasonable assurance liegapdevention or timely detection
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition &f ¢tompanys assets that could have a material effect onitladial statements. Because a
inherent limitations, internal control over finaakreporting may not prevent or detect misstatemeAiso, projections of any evaluatior
effectiveness to future periods are subject taiiethat controls may become inadequate becauskasfges in conditions, or that the degre
compliance with policies or procedures may detetmr

The Companys assessment of the effectiveness of its interomdral over financial reporting included testingdagvaluating the design ¢
operating effectiveness of its internal controlstmthe participation of its principal executive gmihcipal financial officers. In management’
opinion, the Company has maintained effective makcontrol over financial reporting as of Decem®&y 2010, based on criteria establishe
the COSO Framework.

/s/ David R. Little /s/ Mac McConnell

David R. Little Mac McConnell

Chairman of the Board and Senior Vice PresidEmance and
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer
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DXP ENTERPRISES, INC., AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(In Thousands, Except Share and Per Share Amounts)

December 31

2009 2010
ASSETS
Current assett

Cash $ 23 % 7

Trade accounts receivable, net of allowanceddoibtful account

of $3,006 in 2009 and $3,540 in 2( 77,06¢ 99,78

Inventories, ne 72,58! 75,88’

Prepaid expenses and other current a 3,53: 2,55(

Federal income tax receival 23t 402

Deferred income taxe 7,83:% 5,91¢

Total current asse 163,59: 185,30¢
Property and equipment, r 16,95¢ 14,91°
Goodwill 60,54. 84,94.
Other intangibles, net of accumulated amortizatibi13,779 in 200!

and $19,603 in 201 25,72 32,23¢
Non-current deferred income tax 3,28¢ 2,28¢
Other asset 822 931

Total asset $ 270,9:  $ 320,6:

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities:

Current portion of lon-term debt $ 12,5¢ 10,9:

Trade accounts payak 51,18¢ 55,01¢
Accrued wages and benel 6,63 11,82¢

Customer advanct 1,00¢ 10,27

Other accrued liabilitie 6,37 4,831

Total current liabilitie: 77,79¢ 92,88:
Long-term debt, less current portir 102,91¢ 103,62:
Commitments and contingencies (Note
Shareholder equity:

Series A preferred stock, 1/9%ote per share; $1.00 par value;

liquidation preference of $100 per share ($11Rexember 31, 2010)

1,000,000 shares authorized; 1,122 shares isswkdutstandin 1 1

Series B convertible preferred stock, 1#bte per share; $1.00

par value; $100 stated value; liquidation prefiee of $100 per

share ($1,500 at December 31, 2010); 1,000s880=s authorized,;

15,000 shares issued and outstan 15 15

Common stock, $0.01 par value, 100,000,000 staarémrized;

12,935,201 and 14,079,608 shares issued anthodiisg, respectivel 12¢ 14C
Paic-in capital 58,03’ 72,61¢
Retained earning 32,057 51,34¢
Accumulated other comprehensive income (i (26) -

Total shareholde’ equity 90,21 124,12(

Total liabilities and sharehold’ equity $ 270,92 $ 320,6:

The accompanying notes are an integral part okthessolidated financial statemer
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DXP ENTERPRISES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(In Thousands, Except Per Share Amounts)

Years Ended December ¢

2008 2009 2010

Sales $ 736,88 $ 583,22 $ 656,20
Cost of sale: 529,89! 431,81: 467,80°
Gross profil 206,98t 151,41 188,39!
Selling, general and administrative expe 158,79 147,79! 151,30
Goodwill and other intangibles impairme - 52,95 -
Operating income (los: 48,19: (49,332 37,09.
Other income 228 95 24¢
Interest expens (6,130 (5,245 (5,208
Income (loss) before provision for income ta 42,28¢ (54,482 32,13:
Provision (benefit) for income tax 16,39" (12,070 12,75
Net income (loss 25,881 (42,412 19,38
Preferred stock divider (90) (90) (90)
Net income (loss) attributable to common sharedrsl  $ 2579 % (42,50 $ 19,29
Per share and share amot

Basic earnings (loss) per common share —

restated (Note z $ 19 % (3.2¢ $ 1.4

Common shares outstandi- restated (Note 2 12,94¢ 13,115 13,82:

Diluted earnings (loss) per she restated (Note 2 $ 1.8 $ (3.2¢ % 1.3

Common and common equivalent she

Outstandin¢ restated (Note 2 13,86¢ 13,117 14,82

The accompanying notes are an integral part okthessolidated financial statemer
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DXP ENTERPRISES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Years Ended December 31, 2008, 2009 and 2010
(in Thousands, Except Share Amounts

Accumulatec
Series A Series B Other
Preferred Preferred Common Paid-In Retained Treasury Comprehensive
Stock Stock Stock  Capital Earnings  Stock Income (Loss Total

BALANCES AT
DECEMBER 31, 200 $ 3 11 $ 12¢ $54,63: $48,76: $(825 $-  $102,71.
Dividends paic - - - - (90) - - (90)
Compensation expense

for restricted stoc - - - 93C - - - 93(

Exercise of stock options al
vesting of restricted stock fc

219,160 of common stot - - 2 642 - 82t - 1,46¢
Net loss on interest rate sw

for comprehensive incon - - - - - - (721 (721
Net Income - - - - 25,88 - - 25,88
BALANCES AT

DECEMBER 31, 200! $ % 11 $ 128 $56,20¢ $74,55¢ - $(721°  $130,18:!
Dividends paic - - - - (90) - (90)
Compensation expen

for restricted stoc - - - 1,55¢ - - 1,55¢
Net gain on interest rate sw

for comprehensive incon 69t 69t

Exercise of stock options al
vesting of restricted stock fc
71,897 shares of common

stock - - 1 27€ - - - 277

Net loss - - - - (42,412 - - (42,412
BALANCES AT

DECEMBER 31, 200! $ 0% 1! $ 12¢ $58,03° $32,05° - $(26 $90,21:
Dividends paic - - - - (90) - - (90)
Compensation expense

for restricted stoc - - - 973 - - - 972
Net gain on interest rate sw

for comprehensive incon - - - - - - 26 26
Issuance of 498,730 shares i

connection with acquisitior - - 5 7,061 - - - 7,06¢
Issuance of 493,791 shares
upon

conversion of notes to

common stocl - - 5 6,20¢ - - - 6,211

Exercise of stock options anc
vesting of restricted stock fc
149,886 shares of common

stock - - 1 33¢ - - - 34(
Net income - - - - 19,38’ - - 19,38

BALANCES AT

DECEMBER 31, 201! $ % 1 $ 140 $72,61¢ $51,34¢ $ - $-  $124,12

The accompanying notes are an integral part okthessolidated financial statements.
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DXP ENTERPRISES, INC., AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(In Thousands)

Years Ended December

2008 2009 2010
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income (loss $ 258t % (42,41. $ 19,3¢
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) togaeth
provided by operating activiti— net of acquisition:
Goodwill and other intangible impairme - 52,95 -
Precision inventory impairme - 13,80( -
Depreciatior 4,62¢ 4,26( 3,744
Amortization 6,36 7,21¢€ 5,82¢
Deferred income taxe 14 (16,678 2,914
Stocl-based compensation expel 93C 1,55¢ 973
Tax benefit related to exercise of stock optiand
vesting of restricted stot (1,362 (266 (215
Gain on sale of property and equipm (116 - (188
Changes in operating assets and liabilitiesphassets
and liabilities acquired in business combinasi
Trade accounts receival (10,876 24,12¢ (14,528
Inventories (11,161 32,71¢ 2,02¢
Prepaid expenses and other as 36€ (1,665 1,16¢
Accounts payable and accrued expe 3,65k (24,027 2,81(
Net cash provided by operating activit 18,45¢ 51,57¢ 23,90¢
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property and equipm (5,134 (1,593 (1,184
Purchase of businesses, net of cash acq (73,943 (491 (18,394
Proceeds from the sale of property and equipi 15¢€ 16 1,42¢
Net cash used in investing activit (78,919 (2,068 (18,150
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from de 165,46t 133,71t 141,21¢
Principal payments on revolving line of credit,
lonc-term debt and notes payal (104,662 (186,763 (148,798
Dividends paid in cas (90) (90) (90)
Proceeds from exercise of stock opti 10t 10 12&
Tax benefit related to exercise of stock optiand
vesting of restricted stot 1,362 26€ 21F
Net cash provided by (used in) financing attgi 62,18 (52,861 (7,332
INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASI 1,72( (3,354 (1,574
CASH AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 3,97¢ 5,69¢ 2,344
CASH AT END OF YEAR $ 56¢ $ 23 % 75
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES
Cash paid for--
Interes $ 6,2 $ 537 $ 5,2¢
Income taxe $ 9,2¢ $ 1508 $ 8,3¢
Cash income tax refun $ - $ T $ 2t

Purchase of businesses excludes $20 million of comstock, notes and convertible notes issued ineciion with
acquisitions during 2010. Proceeds from debt ebeh6.3 million of convertible notes issued in cection with an
acquisition in 2010 and converted to common stackG10.

The accompanying notes are an integral part oetheasolidated financial statemer
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DXP ENTERPRISES INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1. ORGANIZATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIE S:

DXP Enterprises, Inc., a Texas corporation, wasrparated on July 26, 1996, to be the successBERCO Industries, Inc., DXP Enterpri
Inc. and its subsidiaries (“DXP” or the “Company®) engaged in the business of distributing maireaarepair and operating produ
equipment and service to industrial customers. Toepany is organized into three business segm&wsrzice Centers, Supply Ch
Services (“SCS”) and Innovative Pumping SolutiohiB%”). See Note 14 for discussion of the busireeggments.

Principles of Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statemigrdside the accounts of the Company and its whollyned subsidiaries. All significe
intercompany accounts and transactions have beemated in consolidation.

Receivables and Credit Risk

Trade receivables consist primarily of uncollateesd customer obligations due under normal tradagewhich usually require payment wit
30 days of the invoice date. However, these payreems are extended in select cases and manyncertado not pay within stated tr:
terms.

The Company has trade receivables from a divetsifiesstomer base located primarily in the Rocky Maim Midwestern, Southeastern .
Southwestern regions of the United States. The Gompelieves no significant concentration of credik exists. The Company evaluates
creditworthiness of its customers' financial paosiE and monitors accounts on a regular basis, ferglly does not requ
collateral. Provisions to the allowance for doubthccounts are made monthly and adjustments ae mariodically (as circumstan:
warrant) based upon management’s best estimates afdilectability of all such accounts. The Compemites-off uncollectible trade accout
receivable when the accounts are determined tabellectible. No customer represents more than &bgdnsolidated sales.

Inventories

Inventories consist principally of finished goodsdaare priced at lower of cost or market, cost dpalrtermined using the first-in, firett
(“FIFO”) method. Reserves are provided against inventéoiesstimated obsolescence based upon the agitigeofhventories and marl
trends.

Property and Equipment

Assets are carried on the basis of cost. Providmndepreciation are computed at rates consideréa sufficient to amortize the costs of as
over their expected useful lives. Depreciation mfperty and equipment is computed using the sttdigh method. Maintenance and repair
depreciable assets are charged against earningzc@ased. Additions and improvements are capitalizé/hen properties are retired
otherwise disposed of, the cost and accumulatededigpion are removed from the accounts and gairesses are credited or charge
earnings.

The principal estimated useful lives used in deteimy depreciation are as follows:

Buildings 20 — 39 years

Building improvements 10 — 20 years

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 3 - 10 years

Leasehold improvements over the shorter of the estimated usdfieildr the term of the related lease
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Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company’s presentation of cash includes caslvagnts. Cash equivalents are defined as gbamt-investments with maturity dates of
days or less at time of purchase.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

A summary of the carrying and the fair value ofaficial instruments, excluding derivatives, at DelenB81, 2009 and 2010 is as follows
thousands):

2009 2010
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Value Value Value Value
Cash $2,34¢ $2,34¢ $77C $77(
Long-term debt, including current portic 115,51: 115,51: 114,55: 114,55!

The carrying value of the longrm debt approximates fair value based upon theegtirates and terms available to the Compan
instruments with similar remaining maturities. T¢@rying amounts of accounts receivable and adsquayable approximate their fair val
due to the short-term maturities of these instrusen

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company uses restricted stock for share-basegensation programs. No future grants will be mai@er the Compang’stock optio
plans. See Note 9 — Shareholders’ Equity for &mtthd information on stock-based compensation.

Revenue Recognition

For binding agreements to fabricate tangible assetsustomer specifications, the Company recognieeenues using the percentag:
completion method. The extent of completion is mead as cost incurred divided by the total estichatest. At December 31, 2009 and 2!
$0.1 million and $2.8 million, respectively, of uldd costs and estimated earnings are includeacoounts receivable. For other sales
Company recognizes revenues when an agreemenplada, the price is fixed, title for product passe the customer or services have |
provided and collectability is reasonably assuRelenues are recorded net of sales taxes.

The Company reserves for potential customer retoased upon the historical level of returns.
Shipping and Handling Costs

The Company classifies shipping and handling crahiiéed to customers as sales. Shipping and imapdharges paid to others are class
as a component of cost of sales.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in confoymiith generally accepted accounting principleguiees the Company to make estimates
assumptions in determining the reported amountaseéts and liabilities and disclosure of contingesstets and liabilities at the date of
financial statements and the reported amounts \wmees and expenses during the reporting period. sldgnificant estimates made by
Company in the accompanying financial statemertded¢o the valuation of intangibles, impairmenalgsis, reserves for accounts receiv
collectability, inventory valuations, income taxasd selfinsured medical and liability claims. Actual rasutould differ from those estima
and such differences could be material.
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Self Insured Insurance and Medical Claims

We generally retain up to $100,000 of risk for ealzim for workers compensation, general liabiltomobile and property loss. We aci
for the estimated loss on the silfured portion of these claims. The accrual jastdd quarterly based upon reported claims inftiona The
actual cost could deviate from the recorded esémat

We generally retain up to $200,000 of risk on eawsfdical claim for our employees and their depergleWie accrue for the estima
outstanding balance of unpaid medical claims fareyaployees and their dependents. The accruajisted monthly based on recent cle
experience. The actual claims could deviate freaent claims experience and be materially diffefiemh the reserve.

The accrual for these claims at December 31, 268®809 was approximately $1.8 million and $1.3ioml respectively.
Impairment of Lon-Lived Assets and Goodwill

Goodwill represents a significant portion of outatoassets. We review goodwill for impairment artyuduring our fourth quarter or mc
frequently if certain impairment indicators ariseder the provisions of authoritative guidance. \W&ew goodwill at the reporting unit lev
which is one level below an operating segment. @geiv the carrying value of the net assets of @apbrting unit to the net present valui
estimated discounted future cash flows of the mapgpunit. If the carrying value exceeds the neisent value of estimated discounted fL
cash flows, an impairment indicator exists and stinete of the impairment loss is calculated. Thie ¥alue calculation includes multi|
assumptions and estimates, including the projectsth flows and discount rates applied. Changehdset assumptions and estimates ¢
result in goodwill impairment that could materialigiversely impact our financial position or resatsoperations. Goodwill of $84.9 millic
was primarily recorded in connection with the 15asitions completed since 2004. Approximately $1éillion was included in o
Innovative Pumping Solutions segment and $68.9ianillvas included in the two reporting units for @ervice Centers segment which
DXP and PFI. Assets, liabilities, deferred taxad goodwill for each reporting unit were determinesing the balance sheets maintaine:
each reporting unit.

When estimating fair values of a reporting unit éor goodwill impairment test, we use an incomerapph which incorporates management’
views. The income approach provides an estimagd/élue based on each reporting unihticipated cash flows that are discounted us
weighted average cost of capital rate. The pringgumptions used in the income approach were astihtash flows and weighted avel
cost of capital. Estimated cash flows were prilgavased on projected revenues, operating costapitial expenditures and are discou
based on comparable industry average rates forntezigaverage cost of capital. We utilized discaates based on weighted average cc
capital ranging from 11.0% to 14.5% when we estadatair values of our reporting units as of DecemBg&, 2010. To ensure 1
reasonableness of the estimated fair values ofeporting units, we performed a reconciliation of dotal market capitalization to the tc
estimated fair value of all our reporting unitsheTassumptions used in estimating fair values pbnteng units and performing the good\
impairment test are inherently uncertain and reglimanagement judgment. The assumptions and nudtigpes used for valuing goodwill
the current year are consistent with those uséideimprior year.

During 2010 the U.S. and global economies stalulaed oil and natural gas prices increased, whidhd improvements in our sales, mar
and cash flows. Our sales and profitability imgrdwvthroughout the year. We considered the impathese changes in the economic
business climate as we performed our annual imgaitrassessment of goodwill as of December 31, 2010.

Our goodwill impairment analysis led us to concludat there was not an impairment of goodwill dgr2010. If we increased our disco
rates by 10%, or decreased our expected growth bgtd 0% when estimating the fair values of ouorépg units, there would not have b
an impairment of goodwill in 2010.

Long-ived assets, including property, plant and equiptmend amortizable intangible assets also comgrisegnificant portion of our tot
assets. We evaluate the carrying value of lbrgd assets when impairment indicators are presenivhen circumstances indicate -
impairment may exist under authoritative guidané¢hen management believes impairment indicators meigt, projections of tf
undiscounted future cash flows associated withueeof and eventual disposition of long-lived aséetd for use are prepared. If
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the projections indicate that the carrying valuethe long-lived assets are not recoverable, waaedhe carrying values to fair value. For long-
lived assets held for sale, we compare the carryaiges to an estimate of fair value less selliogts to determine potential impairment.
test for impairment of longjved assets at the lowest level for which casiwfi@are measurable. These impairment tests arelhéafiencec

by assumptions and estimates that are subjectdngehas additional information becomes availalée concluded DXP did not have
impairment of long-lived assets during 2010.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

The $2.5 million adjustment to increase goodwiltidg 2009 primarily results from a $0.9 million rexlion in the value of acquired inventol
for Rocky Mtn. Supply, Inc. and a $1.2 million retion in acquired fixed assets for PFI, LLC, boftwdich were acquired in 2008. The $Z
million increase in goodwill and the $12.3 milliamcrease in other intangibles acquired during 2@Kults from recording the goodwill &
other intangibles associated with the acquisitiohshe assets of Quadna, Inc. (“Quadna”) and D&Btiikutors, Inc. (“D&F”). The $0..
million increase in goodwill for payment of earntaelates to contingent purchase price for the 2806&uisition of Falcon Pump. Otl
intangible assets are generally amortized on &kbtréne basis over the useful lives of the asséfgproximately $69.0 million of goodwill al
$23.8 million of other intangible assets pertairtite Service Centers segment. Approximately $illon of goodwill and $3.3 million ¢
other intangible assets pertain to the IPS segm&pproximately $5.1 million of other intangiblesgts pertain to the SCS segment.

The changes in the carrying amount of goodwill atieer intangibles for 2009 and 2010 are as folliwshousands):

Other
Total Goodwill Intangibles
Balance as of December 31, 2( $ 143,94 $ 98,71 $ 45,22
Adjustments to prior year estimat 2,491 2,491 -
Amortization (7,216 - (7,216
Impairment (52,951 (40,667 (12,284
Balance as of December 31, 2( $ 86,26 $ 60,54 $ 25,72
Payment of earn ol 20C 20C -
Acquired during the ye¢ 36,53 24,20( 12,33:
Amortization (5,824 - (5,824
Balance as of December 31, 2( $117,17! $ 84,94 $ 32,23

The changes in the carrying amount of goodwill égraent for 2009 and 2010 are as follows (in thodsan

Service
Total Centers SCS IPS
Balance as of December 31, 2( $ 98,71 $ 72,66 $ 17,60 $ 8,44
Adjustments to prior year estimal 2,491 2,491 - -
Impairment (40,667 (23,058 (17,609 -
Balance as of December 31, 2( $ 60,54, $ 52,10 - $ 8,44
Payment of earn o\ 20C 20C - -
Acquired during the ye¢ 24,20( 16,66 - $ 7,53
Balance as of December 31, 2( $ 84,94, $ 68,96. - $ 15,98
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A summary of amortizable other intangible asselsvies (in thousands):

As of December 31, 20 As of December 31, 201

Gross Gross

Carrying Accumulated Carrying Accumulated

Amount Amortization Amount Amortization
Vendor agreemen $ 2,49 $ (706 $ 2,49 $ (831
Customer relationshig 35,39( (11,908 47,36 (17,237
Non-compete agreemer 1,62( (1,165 1,98( (1,535
Total $ 39,50 $ (13,779 $ 51,83 $ (19,603

The estimated future annual amortization of inthlegassets for each of the next five years follGwshousands):

2011 $ 6,410
2012 $ 6,277
2013 $ 5,557
2014 $ 5,296
2015 $ 3,755

The weighted average useful lives of acquired igitzlas related to vendor agreements, customeiigadtips, and nosempete agreements
20 years, 7.7 years and 4.1 years, respectivehe wieighted average useful life of amortizablerigthle assets in total is 8.2 years.

Of the $117.2 million net balance of goodwill artther intangibles at December 31, 2010, $102.9 onills expected to be deductible for
purposes.

Purchase Accounting

DXP estimates the fair value of assets, includingpprty, machinery and equipment and their relateeful lives and salvage values,
liabilities when allocating the purchase price nfazquisition.

Cost of Sales and Selling, General and AdministrvatiExpense

Cost of sales includes product and product relatesds, inbound freight charges, internal transéets and depreciation. Selling, general
administrative expense includes purchasing andiviegecosts, inspection costs, warehousing costpretiation and amortization. DX’
gross margins may not be comparable to those ef ethtities, since some entities include all of¢bsts related to their distribution networ!
cost of sales and others like DXP exclude a portibthese costs from gross margin, including thetxm a line item, such as selling, ger
and administrative expense.

Income Taxes

The Company utilizes the asset and liability metbbeccounting for income taxes. Deferred incomeassets and liabilities are computec
differences between the financial statement andnie tax bases of assets and liabilities. Suchridefeincome tax asset and liabi
computations are based on enacted tax laws and agielicable to periods in which the differences axpected to reverse. Valua
allowances are established to reduce deferred ia¢arassets to the amounts expected to be realized

Comprehensive Income

Comprehensive income includes net income, foreigmeacy translation adjustments, unrecognized g@@sses) on postretirement and o

employmentrelated plans, changes in fair value of certainvaéves, and unrealized gains and losses on oeirigestments in debt and eq.
securities. The Company’s other comprehensive)iossme is comprised exclusively of changes inviileie of an interest rate swap.
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Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes

In July 2006, the Financial Accounting Standardafi(“FASB”) issued authoritative guidance which requires thaasition taken or expect
to be taken in a tax return be recognized in tharitial statements when it is more likely than (et a likelihood of more than fifty perce
that the position would be sustained upon exanunably tax authorities. A recognized tax positisrtien measured at the largest amou
benefit that is greater than fifty percent likelfyeing realized upon ultimate settlement. The @any and its subsidiaries file income
returns in the U.S. federal jurisdiction and vasiatiates. With few exceptions, the Company is ngéo subject to U. S. federal, state and

tax examination by tax authorities for years ptm2003. The Compang’policy is to recognize interest related to ungmized tax benefits

interest expense and penalties as operating expeAserued interest is insignificant and there acepenalties accrued at December
2010. The Company believes that it has appropsapport for the income tax positions taken antdédaken on its tax returns and tha
accruals for tax liabilities are adequate for @i years based on an assessment of many faatbrdiimg past experience and interpretatior
tax law applied to the facts of each matter.

2. RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS:

In September 2006, the Financial Accounting Statel&oard (“FASB”)issued authoritative guidance which defines falugaestablishes
framework for measuring fair value in accordancéhwgenerally accepted accounting principles andarap disclosures about fair ve
measurements. This authoritative guidance doesrempiire any new fair value measurements; ratheapjtlies under other account
pronouncements that require or permit fair valu@asneements. The provisions of this authoritativielgiuice are to be applied prospectivel
of the beginning of the fiscal year in which thgsinitially applied, with any transition adjustmeetognized as a cumulatiedfect adjustmel
to the opening balance of retained earnings. Thwigions of this authoritative guidance are effextfor the fiscal years beginning a
November 15, 2007. In February 2008, the FASB @dsughoritative guidance which delayed the effectiate of this authoritative guidanci
fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2008 imterim periods within those years for all nonfica assets and nonfinancial liabiliti
except those that are recognized at fair valudénfinancial statements on a recurring basis @tlannually). See Note 1Edir Value o
Financial Assets and Liabilities” for additionafanmation on the adoption of this authoritativedgrice.

In December 2007, the FASB issued authoritativelguie which requires the acquiring entity in a hess combination to measure
identifiable assets acquired, the liabilities assdrand any noncontrolling interest in the acquaetheir fair values on the acquisition date,
goodwill being the excess value over the net idi@ble assets acquired. In addition, immediate agperecognition is required for transac
costs. This authoritative guidance is effectiveffoancial statements issued for fiscal years b&igop after December 15, 2008, and adoptis
prospective only.

In March 2008, the FASB issued authoritative gu@amvhich amends and expands the disclosure regeismof previous authoritati
guidance to provide a better understanding of hogvahy an entity uses derivative instruments, hewwvative instruments and related hec
items are accounted for, and their effect on aityestfinancial position, financial performance, andiclows. This authoritative guidance ¢
requires disclosure of the fair values of derivatimstruments and their gains and losses in adalfjofmat. This authoritative guidance
effective for financial statements issued for flsggars and interim periods beginning after Novenidg 2008. As this pronouncement is ¢
disclosure-related, it did not have an impact orP®inancial position and results of operations.

In April 2008, the FASB issued authoritative guidarwhich amends the factors that should be coresdier developing renewal or extens
assumptions used to determine the useful life iifcagnized intangible asset. This authoritativedlgnce requires expanded disclosure re
to the determination of useful lives for intangildesets and should be applied to all intangibletasscognized as of, and subsequel
December 31, 2008. The impact of this authoritagjuidance will depend on the size and nature giiiaitions completed by the Company.
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In June 2008, the FASB issued authoritative guidamhbich provides that unvested share-based payaveatds that contain ndo+feitable
rights to dividends or dividend equivalents (whetpaid or unpaid) are participating securities ahdll be included in the computatior
earnings per share using the talass method. The authoritative guidance is effedior fiscal years beginning after December 1886n
retrospective basis andas adopted by the Company in the first quarte@d9. The Company has granted awards of restritimek tha
contain nonforfeitable rights to dividends which are consideparticipating securities under this authoritagjuedance. Because these aw
are participating securities under the authorieatjuidance, the Company is required to includeetfestruments in the calculation of earni
per share using the twdass method. The adoption of the authoritativielgiuce reduced basic and diluted earnings per dha®%0.02 fo
2008. Basic earnings per share, diluted earningsipgre, weighted average common shares outstaadilhgveighted average common
common equivalent shares outstanding for 2008 baea restated.

In May 2009, the FASB issued authoritative guidawbéch establishes general standards of accoufdingnd disclosure of events that oc
after the balance sheet date but before the finhistatements are issued or are available to hedssThe authoritative guidance provi
guidance on the period after the balance sheetdiateg which management of a reporting entity $th@valuate events or transactions
may occur for potential recognition or disclosurdtie financial statements, the circumstances uwbdéh an entity should recognize event
transactions occurring after the balance sheet idatts financial statements and the disclosured #n entity should make about event
transactions that occurred after the balance steet The Company adopted the authoritative guilaioecing the second quarter of 2009,
its application had no impact on the Compangbnsolidated condensed financial statements. drapany evaluated subsequent e\
through the date this report was filed with the SEC

In October 2009, the FASB issued new standardsréeenue recognition with multiple deliverables. $@enew standards impact
determination of when the individual deliverablaslided in a multipleelement arrangement may be treated as separatefangccountin
purposes. Additionally, these new standards motli&y manner in which the arrangement considerasoallbcated across the separe
identified deliverables by no longer permitting tiesidual method of allocating arrangement conaitter. These new standards are requir
be adopted in the first quarter of 2011. DXP doatsexpect these new standards to significantlyaichpur consolidated financial statements.

3. ACQUISITIONS

All of the Companys acquisitions have been accounted for using thehpge method of accounting. Revenues and expehfsks acquire
businesses have been included in the accompangimgplidated financial statements beginning on thespective dates of acquisition. -
allocation of purchase price to the acquired asmedsliabilities is based on estimates of fair nearkalue and may be prospectively revise
and when additional information the Company is &wgiconcerning certain asset and liability valoas is obtained, provided that s
information is received no later than one yearratfte date of acquisition. Any contingent purchasee on acquisitions completed bel
January 1, 2009 will increase goodwill when paid.

On January 31, 2008, DXP completed the acquisibibthe business of Rocky Mtn. Supply. DXP acquiteid business to expand DXP’
presence in the Colorado area. DXP paid $3.9 anilin cash and $0.7 million in seller notes. ThHes notes bear interest at prime mi
1.75%.

On August 28, 2008, DXP completed the acquisitibRl, LLC. DXP acquired this business to streegtiXP’s expertise in the distributi
of fasteners. DXP paid $66.4 million in cash fuistbusiness. The cash was funded by utilizingwa credit facility.

On December 1, 2008, DXP completed the acquisifoie business of Falcon Pump. DXP acquiredlibsness to strengthen DX¥pum;
offering in the Rocky Mountain area. DXP paid $&illion in cash, $0.8 million in seller notes a#d.2 million in payments in 2010 whi
were contingent upon future earnings of the acquingsiness. The seller notes bear interest atynifagt LIBOR plus 0.75%.

During 2009 the initial purchase price allocaticor the 2008 acquisitions was adjusted to allocales $nillion of purchase price
goodwill. These increases in goodwill primariljated to reducing the value of inventories anddigssets for the 2008 acquisitions. Du
2009 the Company recognized an impairment char@®®f0 millionfor goodwill and other intangibles associated wfita Service Centers a
SCS segments. During 2010 the Company paid $0dl@min contingent purchase price related to tbguasition of Falcon Pump.
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On April 1, 2010, DXP acquired substantially ak thssets of Quadna, Inc. (“Quadna”). The purchdse pf approximately $25.0 million (net
of $3.0 million of acquired cash) consisted of $dillion paid in cash, $10 million in the form of mweertible promissory notes bearing interest
at a rate of 10% and approximately $4.0 milliorthe form of 343,337 shares of DXP common stock. April 9, 2010, $4.5 million principal
amount of the convertible promissory notes, aloiith accrued interest, were converted into 376,4tfes of DXP’s common stock. On
August 18, 2010, $3.7 million of the convertibl®missory notes were paid off using funds obtaimethfDXP’s credit facility and $1.8

million of the convertible promissory notes werengerted to 117,374 shares of DXP common stock. $liemillion cash portion of the
purchase price was funded by borrowings under DXRisting credit facility. DXP completed this adsjtion to expand its pump business in
the Western U.S. Goodwill of $18.8 million wasagnized for this acquisition and is calculatedresexcess of the consideration transferred
over the net assets recognized and representsttire Economic benefits arising from other asseqsiised that could not be individually
identified and separately recognized. It spedifidacludes the expected synergies and other lisrtbfit we believe will result from
combining the operations of Quadna with the openatiof DXP and any intangible assets that do nalifyufor separate recognition such as
assembled workforce.

On November 30, 2010, DXP acquired substantiallpfathe assets of D&F Distributors, Inc. (“D&F")The purchase price of $13.4 milli
consisted of approximately $7.4 million paid inftaapproximately $2.9 million in the form of proreisy notes bearing interest at a rate of
and approximately $3.1 million in the form of 1583shares of DXP common stock. The cash portioth@fpurchase price was fundec
borrowings under DX’ existing credit facility. DXP completed this acsjtion to expand its pump business in Indianantkeky, Tenness
and Ohio. Goodwill of $5.4 million was recognizied this acquisition and is calculated as the exadshe consideration transferred over
net assets recognized and represents the futunemio benefits arising from other assets acquinadl tould not be individually identified a
separately recognized. It specifically includes #xpected synergies and other benefits that wievieewill result from combining tt
operations of D&F with the operations of DXP and antangible assets that do not qualify for separaicognition such as the assem
workforce.

The value assigned to the noompete agreements and customer relationships fiadida and D&F were determined by discounting
estimated cash flows associated with mompete agreements and customer relationships the afate the acquisition was consummated.
estimated cash flows were based on estimated resemet of operating expenses and net of capitabebdor assets that contribute to
projected cash flow from these assets. The pmgjentvenues and operating expenses were estimased! lbn management estimates.
capital charges for assets that contribute to ptefecash flow were based on the estimated fairevaf those assets. Discount rates of 17.(
17.2% were deemed appropriate for valuing thesetasmd were based on the risks associated withedpective cash flows taking il
consideration the acquired company’s weighted @eecast of capital.

The following table summarizes the estimated failues of the assets acquired and liabilities asduduging 2010 in connection with |
acquisitions described above (in thousands):

Cash $ 3,03!
Accounts Receivabl 8,421
Inventory 6,31¢
Property and equipme 837
Goodwill and intangible 36,53:
Other asset 20z
Assets acquire 55,34"
Current liabilities assume (13,947
Non-current liabilities assume -

Net assets acquirt $ 41,401
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The pro forma unaudited results of operations fer Company on a consolidated basis for the yeatedeDecember 31, 2009 and 2(
assuming the acquisition of businesses complet2010 were consummated as of January 1 of eacHoleaws:

Years Ended
December 31

2009 2010
(Unaudited)
In Thousands, except for p
share dati
Net Sales $ 653,17 $689,67!
Net (loss) inome $(39,967 $ 20,84
Per share dat
Basic Earning: $(3.04 $1.5(
Diluted Earnings $(3.04 $1.47

4. PRECISION INVENTORY IMPAIRMENT IN 2009

During 2009 the Company determined that the valumentory acquired in connection with the acqigsi of Precision on September
2007, was overstated by $13.8 million becauserthenitory was obsolete, expired, old and/or slow impv The $13.8 million charge to red
the value of this inventory is included in cossafes for 2009.

5. INVENTORIES:

The carrying values of inventories are as follows:

December 31

2009 2010
(in Thousands
Finished $ 72,27 $ 73,42
goods
Work in 311 2,46¢
process
Inventorie: $ 72,58 $ 75,88

6. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT:

Property and equipment consisted of the following:

December 31

2009 2010
(in Thousands
Land $ 1,77 $ 1,65
Buildings and leasehold improveme 7,67 7,50¢
Furniture, fixtures and equipme 22,32¢ 23,70(
31,77 32,86(
Less— Accumulated depreciation and amortizat (14,817 (17,943

$16,95! $ 14,91

44




7. LONG-TERM DEBT:

Long-term debt consisted of the following:

December 31

2009 2010
(in Thousands
Line of credit $ 75,00 $ 83,66
Term loan, payable in quarterly installments $2.5 million throug
August 2012 35,50( 25,50(
Unsecured notes payable to individuals, at variahles (1.0% to 1.75¢
at December 31,
2010) payable in monthly and quarterly instalis through Novemb
2011 3,027 63C
Unsecured subordinated notes payable in quartestaliments at 59
through November 201 - 2,90(
Mortgage loan payable to financial institution, 82 collateralized b
real estate,
payable in monthly installmenthrough January 201 1,95¢ 1,857
Other note: 28 -
115,51 114,55:
Less: Current portio (12,595 (10,930

$102,91 $ 103,62.

On August 28, 2008, DXP entered into a credit agesg with Wells Fargo Bank, National Association,lead arranger and administra
agent for the lenders (thé&d&cility). The March 15, 2010 amendment to theilfacignificantly increased the interest rateslaommitmer
fees applicable at various leverage ratios fronelen effect before March 15, 2010. The Facitipnsists of a $50 million term loan an
revolving credit facility that provides a $150 rioh line of credit to the Company. The term loaguiees principal payments of $2.5 million
guarter. The Facility matures on August 11, 20TBe Facility contains financial covenants definwagious financial measures and level
these measures with which the Company must conGayenant compliance is assessed as of each geadeand certain month ends for
asset test. The asset test is defined under ttibtyFas the sum of 85% of the Compasyiet accounts receivable, 60% of net inventory
50% of the net book value of non-real-estate pitypand equipment. The Compasyborrowing and letter of credit capacity under
revolving credit portion of the Facility at any giv time is $150 million less borrowing under thealging credit portion of the Facility a
letters of credit outstanding, subject to the atssttdescribed above.

On December 31, 2010, the LIBOR-based rate onabalving credit portion of the Facility was LIBORug 2.75%, the primbéased rate on t
revolving credit portion of the Facility was theame rate plus 1.75%, the commitment fee was 0.315%|IBORbased rate for the term Ic
was LIBOR plus 3.25% and the prirbased rate for the term loan was the prime rate plR5%. At December 31, 2010, $103.5 million
borrowed under the Facility at a weighted averagerést rate of approximately 3.2% under the LIBGRons. The revolving credit portion
the Facility provides the option of interest at OB plus a margin ranging from 2.25% to 4.00% dhatprime rate plus a margin of 1.259
3.00%. Commitment fees of 0.25% to 0.625% per emate payable on the portion of the Facility cajyaeot in use for borrowings or lett
of credit at any given time. The term loan portafrthe Facility provides the option of interest #BOR plus a margin ranging from 2.75%
4.50% or at the prime rate plus a margin of 1.79%8.60%. Borrowings under the Facility are securgdall of the Compang’' account
receivable, inventory, general intangibles and reai-estate property and equipment. At December 310,28 had $50.0 million availat
for borrowing and letters of credit under the Hagcil

The Facility’s principal financial covenants inckud

Fixed Charge Coverage Rati— The Facility requires that the Fixed Charge CoverRgtio for the 12nonth period ending on the last da
each quarter through December 31, 2010 be nothess1.25 to 1.0, stepping up to 1.50 to 1.0 faheguarter ending on or after March
2011, with “Fixed Charge Coverage Ratitgfined as the ratio of (a) EBITDA (as defined béldor the 12 months ending on such date,
cash taxes and minus capietpenditures for such period (excluding acquisi)oto (b) the aggregate of interest expense paidash
scheduled principal payments in respect of longitdebt and current portion of capital leases fahsu2month period, determined in e:
case on a consolidated basis for DXP and its sissd.
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Leverage Ratio- The Facility requires that the Compasy’everage Ratio, determined at the end of eachlftarter, not exceed 4.00 to 1
as of December 31, 2010, 3.50 to 1.00 as of Mafgh2811 and 3.25 to 1.0 as of the last day of dizchl quarter thereafter. The Lever
Ratio is defined as the outstanding Indebtednegdedl by EBITDA for the 12 months then ended. AtcBmber 31, 2010, the Company’
Leverage Ratio was 2.26 to 1.00. The Facility nerputhat the Company’Senior Leverage Ratio, determined at the endatf &iscal quarte
not exceed 3.25 to 1.0 as of December 31, 201@, ¥8.(..00 as of March 31, 2011 and 2.75 to 1.0fabelast day of each fiscal qua
thereafter. The Senior Leverage Ratio is defiretha outstanding Indebtedness, minus the aggragatent of all Subordinated Debt, divic
by EBITDA for the 12 months then ended. At DecemB® 2010, the Comparg/Senior Leverage Ratio was 2.20 to 1.00. Indeletes i
defined under the Facility for financial covenantgoses as: (a) all obligations of DXP for borrowedney including but not limited to sen
bank debt, senior notes and subordinated debtailal leases; (c) issued and outstanding lettecsedit; and (d) contingent obligations
funded indebtedness. Subordinated Debt is defimeder the Facility for financial covenant purposes Indebtedness which has t
subordinated on terms and conditions satisfactotiie Lenders.

The following are computations of the Leverage ®atid the Senior Leverage Ratio as of Decembe2(BQ (in thousands, except for ratios):

Senior
For the Year ended December 31, 2 Leverage Ratic Leverage Rati(
Income before taxe $32,13: $32,13:
Interest expens 5,20¢ 5,20¢
Depreciation and amortizatic 9,56¢ 9,56¢
Stock compensation exper 973 973
Pro forma acquisition EBITD/ 3,72 3,72
EBITDA of divestiture 13 13
Reduction of closed location accri (555 (555
®) Defined EBITDA $51,06:. $51,06:.
As of December 31, 201
Total lon¢-term debt $114,55. $114,55
Letters of credit outstandir 933 933
Less: Subordinated De (2,900 -
Defined Indebtednes $112,584B) $115,484C)
Senior Leverage Ratio (B)/(4 2.2C
Leverage Ratio (C)/(A 2.2¢€

EBITDA as defined under the Facility for financ@venant purposes means, without duplication, figreriod the consolidated net income
(excluding any extraordinary gains or losses) offDus, to the extent deducted in calculating chadated net income, depreciation,
amortization, other non-cash items and non-recgitams (including, without limitation, impairmeaharges, asset write-offs and accruals in
respect of closed locations), interest expenseandxpense for taxes based on income and mintise textent added in calculating
consolidated net income, any non-cash items andeturring items; provided that, if DXP acquires #uity interests or assets of any person
during such period under circumstances permittetbuthe Facility, EBITDA shall be adjusted to gju® forma effect to such acquisition
assuming that such transaction had occurred ofirthelay of such period and provided further thia) XP divests the equity interests or as:

of any person during such period under circumstapeemitted under the Facility, EBITDA shall beuslgd to give pro forma effect to such
divestiture assuming that such transaction hadroedwn the first day of such period. Add-backsve¢d pursuant to Article 11, Regulation S-
X, of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, &b be included in the calculation of EBITDA.
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The Facility prohibits the payment of cash dividewd the Company’s common stock.

The maturities of long-term debt for the next fixears and thereafter are as follows (in thousands):

2011 $ 10,93l
2012 10,30¢
2013 90,99t
2014 193
2015 2,127
Thereaftel -

8. INCOME TAXES:

The provision for income taxes consists of theofelhg:

Years Ended December :
2008 2009 2010
(in Thousands

Current-
Federa $ 14,60! $ 3,84 $ 7,95.
State 1,64¢ 75¢ 1,88t
16,25¢ 4,60¢ 9,837
Deferred 148 (16,678 2,914

$16,39° $(12,070 $12,75.

The difference between income taxes computed detleral statutory income tax rate (35%) and tlowigion for income taxes is as follows:

Years Ended December
2008 2009 2010
(in Thousands
Income taxes computed at federal statutory $ 14,79 $(19,069 $ 11,241

State income taxes, net of federal ber 1,072 492 1,22
Nondeductible impairment exper - 6,852 -
Other 52¢€ (345 28C

$16,39° $(12,070 $ 12,75

The net current and noncurrent components of daféncome tax balances are as follows:

December 31

2009 2010
(in Thousands
Net current asse $ 7,83 $ 5,91¢
Net nor-current assetl 3,28¢ 2,28¢
Net nor-current liabilities - -
Net assets (liabilities $11,12: $ 8,20!
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Deferred tax liabilities and assets were comprigfatie following:

December 31
2009 2010
(in Thousands

Deferred tax asset

Goodwill $ 5,77¢ $ 4,87:
Allowance for doubtful accoun 1,052 1,23(
Inventories 5,68¢ 3,61¢
Accruals 93€ 74C
Interest rate swea 16 -
Other 28( 18C
Total deferred tax asse 13,74¢ 10,63¢
Less valuation allowanc - -
Total deferred tax assets, net of value 13,74¢ 10,63¢
allowance
Deferred tax liabilities
Intangibles (1,028 (907
Property and equipme (1,499 (1,421
Other (99) (100
Net deferred tax asset (liabilit $11,12: $ 8,20¢

9. SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY:

On September 30, 2008, DXP paid a two for one comstock dividend. DXR financial statements have been restated to tefeceffect c
this common stock dividend on all periods presented

Series A and B Preferred Stock

The holders of Series A preferred stock are edtiiteonetenth of a vote per share on all matters presewotedvote of shareholders gener:
voting as a class with the holders of common steokl, are not entitled to any dividends or distiitmg other than in the event of a liquida
of the Company, in which case the holders of thgeSeA preferred stock are entitled to a $100 ligtion preference per share. Each shg
the Series B convertible preferred stock is coriverinto 28 shares of common stock and a monthliddnd per share of $.50. The holder
the Series B convertible stock are also entitled 100 liquidation preference per share after mayrof the distributions to the holders of
Series A preferred stock and to ceeth of a vote per share on all matters preseiotedvote of shareholders generally, voting asaascWitl
the holders of the common stock.

Restricted Stock

Under a restricted stock plan approved by DXP’seaalders in July 2005 (the “Restricted Stock PJadirectors, consultants and employ
may be awarded shares of DXRommon stock. The shares of restricted stocktgdato employees as of December 31, 2010, veste2(9
year for five years after the date of grant, 33.886h year for three years after the grant dated®6 &ach year for ten years after the ¢
date. The shares of restricted stock granted teengployee directors of DXP vest 100% one year dftergrant date. The Restricted St
Plan provides for a grant to each nemployee director of DXP, consisting of the numbfewhole shares calculated by dividing $75,000He
closing price of the common stock on the July thefaward year. The fair value of restricted stawlards is measured based upon the cl
prices of DXP’s common stock on the grant datesiamelcognized as compensation expense over thiegeeriod of the awards.
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The following table provides certain informatiorgaeding the shares authorized, granted and availialfuture grant under the Restric
Stock Plan at December 31, 2010:

Number of shares authorized for gra 600,00(
Number of shares grant 494,66
Number of shares forfeite 60,05:
Number of shares available for future gre 165,38¢
Weighte(-average grant price of granted she $15.3¢

Changes in non-vested restricted stock for 200892thd 2010 were as follows:

Weighted

Number Average

Of Shares Grant Price
Non-vested at December 31, 20 212 ,45: $16.81
Granted 57,50¢ $13.21
Vested (54,708 $16.60
Non-vested at December 31, 20 215,25( $15.91
Granted 94,85¢ $13.96
Forfeited (22,764 $13.15
Vested (63,897 $16.17
Non-vested at December 31, 20 223,44 $15.29
Granted 93,78: $15.92
Forfeited (37,287 $17.08
Vested (99,886 $12.32
Non-vested at December 31, 20 180,05¢ $16.15

Compensation expense recognized for restricteck sStothe years ended December 31, 2008, 2009 afh@ @@&s $930,000, $1,555,000
$973,000, respectively. Related income tax bemeéitognized in earnings were approximately $372,8822,000 and $389,000 in 2C
2009 and 2010, respectively. Unrecognized compiemsaexpense under the Restricted Stock Plan was0$000 and $2,423,0(
respectively, at December 31, 2009 and 2010. ADetember 31, 2010, the weighted average period waéch the unrecognizi
compensation expense is expected to be recogriZtié months.

Stock Options

The DXP Enterprises, Inc. 1999 Employee Stock @pBtan, the DXP Enterprises, Inc. Lomgfm Incentive Plan and the DXP Enterpri
Inc. Director Stock Option Plan authorized the gmfnoptions to purchase 1,800,000, 660,000 and0®@0shares of the Compasyommo
stock, respectively. In accordance with thesekstqtion plans that were approved by the Compasiiareholders, options were granted tc
personnel for the purchase of shares of the Comipaiymmon stock at prices not less than the faiketaralue of the shares on the date
grant. Most options could be exercised not eatlian 12 months nor later than 10 years from thie dhgrant. No future grants will be m:
under these stock option plans. Activity durin@202009 and 2010 with respect to the stock optiolhaws:

Weighted
Average Aggregate
Options Price Exercise Intrinsic
Shares Per Shart Price Value
Outstanding at December 31, 2( 222,45. $0.50- $3.36 $1.0:  $ 4,953,00
Exercisec (164,452  $0.50- $0.68 $0.6¢ $ 3,511,00
Outstanding and exercisable 58,000 $1.25 - $3.36 $2.3: $ 712,00
December 31, 200
Exercisec (8,000 $1.25 $1.28 % 85,00
Outstanding and exercisable 50,00C $1.25- $3.36 $2.5C $ 529,00
December 31, 200
Exercisec (50,000  $1.25- $3.36 $2.5C $ 489,00

Outstanding and exercisable - - - -
December 31, 201

Cash received from stock options exercised durid@32 2009 and 2010 was $105,000, $10,000 and $1@5r@spectively. The weight
average remaining contractual life was 4.5 yeads4a6 years at December 31, 2008 and 2009, resphcti

Certain Equity Related Transactions

During 2008, 2009 and 2010, employees and dire@biBXP exercised nc-qualified stock options. DXP received a tax detunctor the



amount of the difference between the exercise @ikthe fair market value of the shares recognéeethcome by the individuals exercis
the options. The after tax benefit of the tax déiducis accounted for as an increase in paid-iritabp

Earnings Per Share
Basic earnings per share is computed based on tedigiverage shares outstanding and excludes dila&gurities. Diluted earnings per sl

is computed including the impacts of all potenyiadilutive securities. The following table setstfothe computation of basic and dilu
earnings per share for the years ended Decemb@088, 2009 and 2010.

2008 2009 2010

(in Thousands, except per share amoL
Basic:
Basic weighted average shares outstan 12,94¢ 13,117 13,82:
Net income (loss $25,88’ $(42,412 $ 19,38
Convertible preferred stock divide (90) (90) (90)
Net income (loss) attributable to common sharehsl $25,79° $(42,502 $ 19,29
Per share amou $1.9¢ $(3.24 $1.4(
Diluted:
Basic weighted average shares outstan 12,94¢ 13,117 13,82:
Net effect of dilutive stock options based on ttreasur
stock metho 84 - 7
Assumed conversion of convertible no - - 152
Assumed conversion of convertible preferred s! 84C - 84C
Total common and common equivalent shares outstgi 13,86¢ 13,117 14,82
Net income (loss) attributable to common sharehsl $25,79° $(42,502 19,29:
Interest on convertible notes, net of income t: - - 14z
Convertible preferred stock divide 90 - 90
Net income (loss) for diluted earnings per st $25,88° $(42,502 $ 19,52
Per share amou $1.87 $(3.24 $1.3¢
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10. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES:

The Company leases equipment, automobiles ancedHiglities under various operating leases. Theréuminimum rental commitments as
December 31, 2010, for non-cancelable leases dmlass (in thousands):

2011 $10,47:
2012 8,361
2013 6,33(
2014 4,78¢
2015 1,61¢
2016 1,24z
Thereaftel 5,71(

Rental expense for operating leases was $10,351§1(0201,000 and $12,495,000 for the years end=mkmber 31, 2008, 2009 and 2
respectively.

In 2004, DXP and DXR vendor of fiberglass reinforced pipe were suedldoisiana by a major energy company regardingféilere of
Bondstrand PSX JFC pipe, a recently introduced tgpédiberglass reinforced pipe which had been ifetaon four energy producti
platforms. Plaintiff alleges negligence, breachcohtract, warranty and that damages exceed $2milDXP believes the failures we
caused by the failure of the pipe itself and nowayk performed by DXP. DXP intends to vigorouslgfend these claims. DX®insuranc
carrier has agreed, under a reservation of rightdeny coverage, to provide a defense against ttlagas. The maximum amount of «
insurance coverage, if any, is $6 million. Undertaia circumstance, our insurance may not covey ¢laim. DXP currently believes that 1
claim is without merit.

While DXP is unable to predict the outcome of thissesuits, it believes that the ultimate resolutwifi not have, either individually or in tl
aggregate, a material adverse effect on DXP’s dmteded financial position or results of operations

11. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS:

The Company offers a 401(K) plan which is eligitdesubstantially all employees. During 2008, pdr2009 and part of 2010, the Comp
elected to match employee contributions at a riE @ercent of up to 4 percent of salary defeiDalring 2009 the Company stopped matc
employee contributions. During 2010 the Compamsumeed matching of employee contributions. The Gamgpcontributed $1,450,0(
$823,000 and $540,000 to the 401(K) plan in thesyeaded December 31, 2008, 2009 and 2010, regekycti

12. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Effective January 1, 2008, we adopted authoritagiwielance for financial assets and liabilities noe@d on a recurring basis. This authorite
guidance applies to all financial assets and fir@ti@bilities that are being measured and regbae a fair value basis. Fair value, as defint
the authoritative guidance, is the price that wdmddreceived to sell an asset or paid to transf@bdity in an orderly transaction betwe
market participants at the measurement date. Tthe@tative guidance affects the fair value measumet of an interest rate swap to which
Company was a party, which must be classified & @fithe following categories:

Level 1 Input:

These inputs come from quoted prices (unadjustedgtive markets for identical assets or liabitie

Level 2 Inputs

These inputs are other than quoted prices thablaservable for an asset or liability. These inpotdude: quoted prices for similar asset
liabilities in active markets; quoted prices foeidical or similar assets or liabilities markets that are not active; inputs other than ep

prices that are observable for the asset or ltgbiéind inputs that are derived principally fromamrroborated by observable market dat
correlation or other means.
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Level 3 Input:

These are unobservable inputs for the asset dlitjalvhich require the Company’s own assumptions.

Financial assets and liabilities are classifiedebasn the lowest level of input that is significamtthe fair value measurement. Our assess
of the significance of a particular input to thé fealue measurement requires judgment and maytatfie valuation of the fair value of as:
and liabilities and their placement within the fa&ue hierarchy levels.

The following presents the changes in Level 3 lities for 2008, 2009, and 2010 (in thousands):

2008 2009 2010

Fair value at January $ - $(1,202 $( 42

Realized and unrealized gains (los

included in other (1,202 1,16( 4z
comprehensive incon

Fair value at December 3 $ (1,202 $( 42 $ 7

To hedge a portion of our floating rate debt, agasfuary 10, 2008, DXP entered into an interestsatap agreement with the lead bank o
Facility. Through January 11, 2011, this intemasé swap effectively fixed the interest rate o $dillion of floating rate LIBOR borrowing
under the Facility at onsronth LIBOR of 3.68% plus the margin in effect unttee Facility. Amounts paid or received in corntiat with the
swap were included in interest expense. This smegpdesignated as a cash flow hedging instrum@hanges in the fair value of the swap
included in other comprehensive income. See N8t&ther Comprehensive Incomé&jr gain and (loss), net of income taxes, on therés
rate swap.

The Company measures certain non-financial assetdiabilities, including long-lived assets, atrfaalue on a nomecurring basis. In 20C
the Company recorded a charge of $53.0 millionteelao the impairment of goodwill and other tangéhht the Service Centers, SCS anc
reporting units.

The fair market value of these reporting units watermined using the income approach and Levep8t& which required managemen
make estimates about future cash flows. Managemstimated the amount and timing of future caskldldased on its experience
knowledge of the business environment in whichréporting units operate. The Company was natired to measure any other signific
non-financial assets and liabilities at fair value.

13. OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Other comprehensive income generally representhaliges in shareholdeegjuity during the period, except those resultimgrfinvestmen
by, or distributions to, shareholders. The Comphag other comprehensive income related to chamgegdrest rates in connection with
interest rate swap. At December 31, 2008, 20092844, the accumulated derivative loss, net ofnimedax was $721,000, $26,000, and :
respectively. Other comprehensive income (loss)Heryears ending December 31, 2008, 2009 and @@%$0$25,166,000, $(41,717,000)
$19,407,000, respectively.

14. SEGMENT DATA:

The Service Centers segment is engaged in provitigigtenance, repair and operating products, ecgriprand services, including logist
capabilities, to industrial customers. The Send@@nters segment provides a wide range of MRO mtsdu the rotating equipment, bear
power transmission equipment, fastener, indusitipplies and safety product categories. The Ini@/&umping Solutions segment fabrici
and assembles custom-made engineered pump packBgesupply Chain Services segment manages althvrof customerssupply chain:
including inventory. The 2009 and 2008 segmerdrimiition has been restated to conform with the 2@bdposition of reportable segments.
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The high degree of integration of the Companyperations necessitates the use of a substantider of allocations and apportionments in
determination of business segment information.esarte shown net of intersegment eliminations.

Financial information relating to the Company’s memts is as follows (in thousands):

Innovative Supply

Service Pumping Chain
Centers Solutions Services Total

2010

Sales $452,71! $ 77,02 $126,45! $656,20:
Operating income for reportable segme 50,54¢ 10,33t 7,12( 68,00
Identifiable assets at year e 234,77. 40,03¢ 45,81 320,62
Capital expenditure 1,07t 17 92 1,18¢
Depreciatior 2,98 36¢ 38¢ 3,744
Amortization 4,05¢ 604 1,16¢ 5,82¢
Interest expens 4,11°F 70C 39z 5,20¢
2009

Sales $391,06! $ 55,91. $136,25. $583,22!
Operating income for reportable segme 24,39¢ 7,51¢ 5,54¢ 37,46"
Identifiable assets at year e 199,93 22,60« 48,38t¢ 270,92°
Capital expenditure 1,47¢ 29 89 1,59:
Depreciatior 3,45¢ 34¢ 454 4,26(
Amortization 5,68 33¢ 1,19¢ 7,21¢
Interest expens 3,89( 831 524 5,24%
2008

Sales $470,17 $100,88: $165,82 $ 736,88
Operating income for reportable segme 67,99¢ 11,96: 5,40 85,36(
Identifiable assets at year e 250,14¢ 49,95¢ 97,75 397,85t
Capital expenditure 4,31: 72C 101 5,134
Depreciatior 3,18¢ 344 1,10C 4,62¢
Amortization 4,83( 33¢ 1,19¢ 6,36:
Interest expens 4,09¢ 1,41C 621 6,13(

Years Ended December :

2008 2009 2010

Operating income for reportable segme $ 85,36/ $ 37,46 $ 68,00:
Adjustment for:

Amortization of intangible 6,36: 7,21¢ 5,824

Impairment of goodwill and other intangib! - 52,95 -

Corporate and other expense, 30,80¢ 26,63( 25,08¢
Total operating income (los 48,19: (49,332 37,09.
Interest expense, n 6,13( 5,24¢% 5,20¢
Other expenses (income), 1 (223 (95) (249
Income (loss) before income tay $ 42,28  $(54,482 $ 32,13
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15. QUARTERLY FINANCIAL INFORMATION (Unaudited)

Summarized quarterly financial information for fears ended December 31, 2008, 2009 and 2010adi@ss:

First Seconc Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter

2008

Sales $168.! $187.¢ $186.¢ $ 193.¢
Gross profil 45.¢ 51.¢ 52.8 56.¢
Net income 5.4 6.4 7.C 7.C
Earnings per shar basic (Restatec— Note 2 0.4z 0.4¢ 0.54 0.54
Earnings per shar diluted (Restatec— Note 2 0.3¢ 0.4€ 0.51 0.51
2009

Sales $ 157.¢ $ 144 $ 143.¢ $ 137.¢
Gross profil 46.1 41.4 40.¢ 23.1
Goodwill and other intangibles impairme - - - (53.0
Net income (loss 3.2 2.2 2.7 (50.5
Earnings (loss) per sha- basic 0.24 0.1€ 0.2C (3.84
Earnings (loss) per sha- diluted 0.2: 0.1t 0.1¢ (3.84
2010

Sales $ 147.( $ 167.: $172.. $169.
Gross profil 42.C 47.¢ 48.¢ 49.€
Net income 3.6 4.€ 5.3 5.6
Earnings per shar- basic 0.27 0.3 0.3¢ 0.41
Earnings per shar- diluted 0.2€ 0.31 0.3¢€ 0.3¢

The sum of the individual quarterly earnings pearstamounts may not agree with year-to-date eagrpeg share as each quadesbmputatio
is based on the weighted average number of shatetanding during the quarter, the weighted avestgek price during the quarter and
dilutive effects of the stock options and resticstock in each quarter.

ITEM 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants orcéanting and Financial Disclosure
None.

ITEM 9A. Controls and Procedures

Disclosure Controls and Procedures

DXP carried out an evaluation, under the supermisiod with the participation of its managementiudimg the Chief Executive Officer and"
Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiveness aD&fcember 31, 2010, of the design and operatiddXd®’s disclosure controls and procedi
pursuant to Exchange Act Rules 13a-15 and I&dDisclosure controls and procedures are thé&rasrand other procedures of DXP that
designed to ensure that information required taliselosed by DXP in the reports that it files obmsuits under the Securities Exchange Ac
1934, as amended, is recorded, processed, sumdhaire reported, within the time periods specifindthie rules and forms of the U
Securities and Exchange Commission (the “CommiSgioDisclosure controls and procedures include, withlbmitation, controls an
procedures designed to ensure that informationimedjuo be disclosed by DXP in the reports thdiilés or submits under the Securi
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, is accumulatddcammunicated to the issugrmanagement, including its principal executive
principal financial officers, or persons performirgimilar functions, as appropriate to allow timetlecisions regarding requit
disclosure. Based upon that evaluation, the Chiefcutive Officer and the Chief Financial Officancluded that DX disclosure contrc
and procedures were effective as of the end op¢hied covered by this Report.
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Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
(A) Management’'s Annual Report on Intéi@antrol Over Financial Reporting

Managemer's report on the Compa’s internal control over financial reporting is inded on page 31 of this Report under
heading Manageme’s Annual Report on Internal Control Over Finan&laporting.

(B) Changes in Internal Control over Ficial Reporting
None
ITEM 9B. Other Information

None.
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PART Il
ITEM 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Govenge
The information required by this item will be indked in our Definitive Proxy statement for the 2@4rinual Meeting of Shareholders that
will file with the SEC within 120 days of the end the fiscal year to which this Report relates (ffeoxy Statement”and is herek
incorporated by reference thereto.
ITEM 11. Executive Compensation
The information required by this item will be indied in the Proxy Statement and is hereby incorpdray reference.
ITEM 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners atanagement
The information required by this item will be indled in the Proxy Statement and is hereby incorpdry reference.
ITEM 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, aDaector Independence
The information required by this item will be indied in the Proxy Statement and is hereby incorpdray reference.

ITEM 14. Principal Auditor Fees and Services.

The information required by this item will be indied in the Proxy Statement and is hereby incorpdray reference.
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PART IV
ITEM 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules.
(a) Documents included in this report:

1. Financial Statements (included under Item 8):

DXP Enterprises, Inc. and Subsidiaries Page
Reports of Independent Registered Public Accourfingy 29
Consolidated Financial Stateme

Management Report on Internal Contr 31
Consolidated Balance She: 32
Consolidated Statements of Operati 33
Consolidated Statements of Shareholders' E« 34
Consolidated Statements of Cash Fl¢ 35
Notes to Consolidated Financial Stateme 36

2. Financial Statement Schedules:

Schedule 1l - Valuation and Qualifying Accounts

All other schedules have been omitted siheer¢quired information is not significant or islided in the Consolidated Financial
Statements or notes thereto or is not applicable.
3. Exhibits:

The following exhibits are filed herewith aeancorporated by reference to exhibits previodisdy with the Commission.

Exhibit
No. Description
3.1 Restated Articles of Incorporation, as amendedfinarated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Cony’s Registration Statement

Form &-8 (Reg. No. 33-61953), filed with the Commission on August 20, 8p!

3.2 Bylaws (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2He Company's Registration Statement on Fc-4 (Reg. No. 33-10021), filed
with the Commission on August 12, 199

4.1 Form of Common Stock certificate (incorporated éference to Exhibit 4.3 to the Company's Registra8tatement on Formn-8
(Reg. No. 33-61953), filed with the Commission on August 20, 8p!

4.2 See Exhibit 3.1 for provisions of the Company'stRtesl Articles of Incorporation, as amended, defirthe rights of security holdel
4.3 See Exhibit 3.2 for provisions of the Company'saéByd defining the rights of security holde

4.4 Form of Senior Debt Indenture of DXP Entemgsidnc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibitté.the Company’s Registration
Statement on Form-3 (Reg. No. 33-166582), filed with the SEC on May 6, 201
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4.5 Form of Subordinated Debt Indenture of DXPefmtises, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exti8 to the Company’s Registration
Statement on Form-3 (Reg. No. 33-166582), filed with the SEC on May 6, 201

+10.1 DXP Enterprises, Inc. 1999 Employee Stock OptianKIncorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 ® @ompany's Quarterly Rep
on Form 1-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30, 1998d fitith the Commission on August 16, 19¢

+10.2 DXP Enterprises, Inc. 1999 N-Employee Director Stock Option Plan (incorporatgdréference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Compa
Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the quarterly period ended June 30, 1998 fivith the Commission on August 16, 19

+10.3 DXP Enterprises, Inc. Long Term Incentive Planaagended (incorporated by reference to Exhibit d.the Company's Registrat
Statement on Form-8 (Reg. No. 33-61953), filed with the Commission on August 20, 8p!

+10.4 Amendment Number One to DXP Enterprises, Inc. -Employee Director Stock Option Plan (incorporatgdréference to Exhit
10.8 to the Company’s Annual Report on FormKLfbr the fiscal year ended December 31, 2003d filéth the Commission on Mar
11, 2004).

+10.5 Employment Agreement dated effective as of Janta®004, between DXP Enterprises, Inc. and David RLittle (incorporated t
reference to Exhibit 10.10 to the Company’s AnrReport on Form 16 for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2003d filéth the
Commission on March 11, 200:

+10.6 Employment Agreement dated effective as of Jun20D4, between DXP Enterprises, Inc. and Mac McClr(imeorporated b
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Quayt&éport on Form 1@ for the quarterly period ended March 31, 200&dfiwith
the Commission on May 6, 200«

+10.7 Amendment Number One to DXP Enterprises, Inc. 188fployee Stock Option Plan (incorporated by refeeeto Exhibit 10.10 f
the Company’s Annual Report on Form KCfor the fiscal year ended December 31, 2004dfildth the Commission on March .
2005).

+10.8 Summary Description of Director Fees (incorpordigdeference to Exhibit 10.11 to the Comg’s Annual Report on Form -K for
the fiscal year ended December 31, 2004, filed thithCommission on March 30, 200

+10.9 Summary Description of Executive Officer Cash Bomlan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.42he Compar’'s Annua
Report on Form 1-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2004d filéth the Commission on March 30, 200

+10.10 Amendment Number Two to DXP Enterprises, Inc. -Employee Director Stock Option Plan (incorporatgdréference to Exhit
10.13 to the Company’s Annual Report on FormKlésr the fiscal year ended December 31, 2004dfikdth the Commission ¢
March 30, 2005)

+10.11 DXP Enterprises, Inc. 2005 Restricted Stock Plandjiporated by reference to Exhibit 10.14 to then@anys Annual Report on Fot
10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 200%dfivith the Commission on March 10, 20(

+10.12 Amendment Number One to Employment Agreement dettiedtive as of January 1, 2004, between DXP Ernigp, Inc. and David
Little (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10dlthe Company’s Current Report on FornK Sfiled with the Commission on July ¢
2006).

+10.13 Amendment No. One to DXP Enterprises, Inc. 2005esd Stock Plan (incorporated by reference tbikix 10.2 to the Compar's
Current Report on Formr-K, filed with the Commission on July 26, 200
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10.14 Stock Purchase Agreement among DXP Enterprises, ascPurchaser, Precision Industries, Inc., ardséiling stockholders dai
August 19, 2007, (incorporated by reference to BixHi0.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Fori, 8ied with the Commissic
on August 21, 2007

10.15 Asset Purchase Agreement among DXP Enterprises,dad?urchaser, Lone Wolf Rental, LLC, Indian Rirel Safety, Inc., and t
other parties named therein dated October 18, 2@9dqrporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to @@mpanys Current Report ¢
Form ¢-K, filed with the Commission on October 22, 20(

10.16 Stock Purchase Agreement among DXP Enterprises, dascPurchaser, Vertex Corporate Holdings, Iie, dtockholders of Vert
Corporate Holdings, Inc. and Watermilertex Enterprises, LLC, dated August 28, 2008 diporated by reference to Exhibit 10..
the Compan’'s Current Report on Forn-K, filed with the Commission on August 29, 200

10.17 Credit Agreement among DXP Enterprises, Inc., agd®eer, and Bank of America, N.A., as Syndicatiogeait, and Wells Farg
Bank, National Association, as Lead Arranger anchiustrative Agent for the Lenders and the Lengemty thereto dated August .
2008 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2h@ Company’s Current Report on ForniK8filed with the Commission on Augt
29, 2008 and the Compe's Current Report on Forn-K/A, filed with the Commission on September 23, @D.

10.18 Amendment Number Two to Employment Agreement datiéelctive January 1, 2004 between DXP Enterprises, and David F
Little (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10althe Company’s Current Report on ForrK 8ded with the Commission on May 2
2010).

10.19 Exhibits and schedules to the Credit Agreement gnixP Enterprises, Inc., as Borrower, and Bank ofefica, N.A., as Syndicati
Agent, and Wells Fargo Bank, National Associat@s | ead Arranger and Administrative Agent for trentlers and the Lenders pi
thereto, dated August 28, 2008 (incorporated bgregfce to Amendment Number Two to the Company’sedaReport on Form 8-
K/A, filed with the Commission on September 23, @D:

10.20 Amendment Number One to Credit Agreement among BXrprises, Inc., as Borrower, and Bank of Amerta., as Syndicatic
Agent, and Wells Fargo Bank, National Associat@as ] ead Arranger and Administrative Agent for tlenders and the Lenders pi
thereto, dated August 28, 2008 (incorporated bgregfce to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Currentd®epn Form 8K, filed with the
Commission on March 16, 201(

10.21 Asset Purchase Agreement, dated as of April 1, 2@h@reby DXP Enterprises, Inc. acquired the assef@adna, Inc. (incorporat
herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Compar@urrent Report on Formi8-filed with the Securities and Exchange Commis
on April 5, 2010).

10.22 Asset Purchase Agreement, dated as of Novembe2®®, whereby DXP Enterprises, Inc. acquired ttsetasof D&F Distributor:
Inc. (incorporated herein by reference to Exhilfitl1to the Company’s Current Report on ForrK,&iled with the Securities al
Exchange Commission on November 23, 20

18.1 Letter of Independent Registered Public Accounfiign Regarding Change in Accounting Principle (irmrated by reference
Exhibit 18.1 to the Company’s Quarterly Report oorrk 10Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 200&dfiwith the
Commission on May 12, 200¢

*21.1  Subsidiaries of the Compar

*23.1 Consent of Hein & Associates LLP, Independent Reggsl Public Accounting Firn

*31.1 Certification of Principal Executive Officer pursudo Rule 13-14(a) and Rule 1f-14(a) of the Exchange Act, as amenc
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*31.2 Certification of Principal Financial Officer purquao Rule 13-14(a) and Rule 1:-14(a) of the Exchange Act, as amenc

*32.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer murant to 18 U.S.C. 1350, as adopted pursuant tio8e206 of the Sarbané3xley Act o
2002, as amende

*32.2  Certification of Chief Financial Officer pswant to 18 U.S.C. 1350, as adopted pursuant ttio8e206 of the Sarban&dxley Act of
2002, as amende

Exhibits designated by the symbol * are filed witiis Annual Report on Form 1K- All exhibits not so designated are incorporatsy
reference to a prior filing with the Commissioniagdicated.

+ Indicates a management contract or compensatiengp arrangement.

The Company undertakes to furnish to any sharehaderequesting a copy of any of the exhibits e fReport on upon payment to
Company of the reasonable costs incurred by thepaagnin furnishing any such exhibit.
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INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM'S
REPORT ON FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULE

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders
DXP Enterprises, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Houston, Texas

We have audited, in accordance with auditing stedgdaf the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@Wnited States), the consolida
financial statements of DXP Enterprises, Inc. ands®liaries included in this Form X0and have issued our report thereon dated Marg
2011. Our audits were made for the purpose of iftgran opinion on the basic financial statemeritertaas a whole. The financial staten
schedule listed in Item 15 herein (Schedule lI-\sihn and Qualifying Accounts) is the responsipitif the Companyg management and
presented for the purpose of complying with the uBdes and Exchange Commissientules and is not part of the basic finar
statements. The financial statement schedule éas Subjected to the auditing procedures appli¢deraudits of the basic financial statem
and, in our opinion, is fairly stated in all matniespects with the financial data required tesdforth therein in relation to the basic finat
statements taken as a whole.

Hein & Associates, LLP
Houston, Texas
March 16, 2011

SCHEDULE Il — VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS
DXP ENTERPRISES, INC.
Years Ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008
(in thousands

Balance a Charged tc Charged tc Balance
Beginning Cost and Other At End
Description of Year Expense: Accounts Deductions of Year
Year ended December 31, 2010
Deducted from assets accounts
Allowance for doubtful accoun $ 3,00 $ 67 $ - $ 1450 $3,54(
Valuation allowance for deferrec
tax assel $ - $ - $ - $ - -
Year ended December 31, 2C
Deducted from assets accounts
Allowance for doubtful accoun $ 3,49 $ 67 $ - $1,163() $3,00¢
Valuation allowance for deferr
tax assel $ 1 $ - $ - $ (16)@ -
Year ended December 31, 2C
Deducted from assets accounts
Allowance for doubtful accoun $ 2,13 $ 1,42 $ 15703 $ 218 $ 3,49
Valuation allowance for deferrt
tax assel $ 3 $ - $ - $ 17@ 16

(2) Uncollectible accounts written off, net of reeoies.
(2) Reduction results from expiration or use ofestzet operating loss carryforwar
(3) Reserve for receivables of acquired busine:
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&{the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regigthas duly caused this repol
be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theéoeduly authorized.

DXP ENTERPRISES, INC. (Registrant)

By: /s/IDAVID R. LITTLE
David R. Little
Chairman of the Board,
President and Chief Executive Officer

Dated: March 16, 2011

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgl Act of 1934, this report has been signed bdipwhe following persons 1
behalf of the registrant and in the capacities@mthe dates indicated:

NAME TITLE DATE
/s/David R. Little Chairman of the Board, Preside March 16, 201:
David R. Little Chief Executive Officer and Direct
(Principal Executive Officer
/s/IMac McConnel Senior Vice President/Finance & March 16, 201:
Mac McConnel Chief Financial Office

(Principal Financial and Accounting Office

/s/Cletus Dauvi Director March 16, 2011
Cletus Davi
/s/Timothy P. Halte Director March 16, 201:

Timothy P. Halte

/s/Kenneth H. Millel Director March 16, 2011
Kenneth H. Millet
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Exhibit 21.1
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY
SEPCO Industries, Inc., a Texas Corporation
DXP Acquisition, Inc., a Nevada corporation (dolmgsiness as Strategic Supply, Inc.)
PMI Operating Company, Ltd., a Texas limited parshe
PMI Investment, LLC, a Delaware limited liabilitpiporation
Pump — PMI LLC, a Texas limited liability corporaiti
R. A. Mueller, Inc. an Ohio corporation
Precision Industries, Inc., a Nebraska corporation
Vertex Corporate Holdings, Inc., a Delaware corpiora
Pawtucket Holdings, Inc., a Delaware corporation
PFI, LLC, a Rhode Island limited liability company

DXP Energy Services, LLC, a Texas limited liabildgrporation



Exhibit 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTINGRM
We hereby consent to the incorporation of our redated March 16, 2011 relating to our audit of doasolidated financial statements,
financial statement schedule and internal contw@r dinancial reporting included in this Annual Repon Form 10-K, into the Comparsy’

previously filed registration statements on Forr G-ile Nos. 333-134606, 333-123698, 333-61953;&3875 and 333-92877) and FornB8S-
(File No. 333-134603).

Hein & Associates LLP
Houston, Texas

March 16, 2011



Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATIONS

I, David R. Little, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of DXP Enterprises, Inc

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not corajnuntrue statement of a material fact or omgtade a material fact necessar
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts under which such statements were made, ntgadisg with respect to t
period covered by this repo

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements,ather financial information included in this repdairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of operstand cash flows of the registrant as of, amndtf@ periods presented in this rep

4. The registrans other certifying officer(s) and | are responsitaeestablishing and maintaining disclosure cdstend procedures {
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15@)) and internal control over financial repogtias defined in Exchange /
Rules 13-15(f) and 15-15(f) for the registrant and hav

€) Designed such disclosure controlsgededures, or caused such disclosure controlpaugdures to be designed undel
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtbsidiaries, is made known to u:
others within those entities, particularly duritg fperiod in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control oveafcial reporting, or caused such internal corarar financial reporting to be desigi
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of financ
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting principles;

(©) Evaluated the effectiveness of thgisteant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presémtidis report our conclusio
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contaold procedures, as of the end of the period covieyethis report based on st
evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any changethe registrans internal control over financial reporting thatcored during th
registrant’'s most recent fiscal quarter (the regigts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annupbrg that has materially affect
or is reasonably likely to materially affect, thegistrant’s internal control over financial repogj and

5.The registrans other certifying officer(s) and | have disclosbdsed on our most recent evaluation of internatrobover financie
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrastboard of directors (or persons performing theveden
functions):

@) All significant deficiencies and m@a weaknesses in the design or operation of matecontrol over financial reportii
which are reasonably likely to adversely affect tbgistrants ability to record, process, summarize and refyoancial informatior
and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not materidhat involves management or other employees who kaggnificant role in tr
registrant’s internal control over financial repogt

Date: March 16, 2011

/s/ David R. Little

David R. Little

President and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)



Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATIONS

[, Mac McConnell, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of DXP Enterprises, Inc

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not corajnuntrue statement of a material fact or omgtade a material fact necessar
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts under which such statements were made, ntgadisg with respect to t
period covered by this repo

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements,ather financial information included in this repdairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of operstand cash flows of the registrant as of, amndtf@ periods presented in this rep

4. The registrans other certifying officer(s) and | are responsitaeestablishing and maintaining disclosure cdstend procedures {
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15@)) and internal control over financial repogtias defined in Exchange /
Rules 13-15(f) and 15-15(f) for the registrant and hav

€) Designed such disclosure controlsgededures, or caused such disclosure controlpaugdures to be designed undel
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtbsidiaries, is made known to u:
others within those entities, particularly duritg fperiod in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control oveafcial reporting, or caused such internal corarar financial reporting to be desigi
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of financ
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting principles;

(©) Evaluated the effectiveness of tiggsteant’s disclosure controls and procedures aadgmted in this report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contintsprocedures, as of the end of the period cougredis report based on such
evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any changethe registrans internal control over financial reporting thatcored during th
registrant’'s most recent fiscal quarter (the regigts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annupbrg that has materially affect
or is reasonably likely to materially affect, thegistrant’s internal control over financial repogj and

5.The registrans other certifying officer(s) and | have disclosbdsed on our most recent evaluation of internatrobover financie
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrastboard of directors (or persons performing theveden
functions):

@) All significant deficiencies and m@a weaknesses in the design or operation of matecontrol over financial reportii
which are reasonably likely to adversely affect tbgistrants ability to record, process, summarize and refyoancial informatior
and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not materidhat involves management or other employees who kaggnificant role in tr
registrant’s internal control over financial repogt

Date: March 16, 2011

/s/ Mac McConnell

Mac McConnell

Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)




Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION
Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350,
as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarb@rkey- Act of 2002, as amended.

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as added hyo8e306 of the Sarban&xley Act of 2002, as amended, the undersignedeaffof DXF
Enterprises, Inc. (the “Company”) hereby certifieat the Company’s Annual Report on FormKL.@ar the year ended December 31, 2010
“Report”) fully complies with the requirements of Sectiond)3¢r 15(d), as applicable, of the Securities ErgeaAct of 1934, as amended
U.S.C. 78m or 780(d)), and that the informationtaored in the Report fairly presents, in all makrespects, the financial condition
results of operations of the Company.

Dated: March 16, 2011
/s/David R. Little

David R. Little
President and Chief Executive Officer

The foregoing certification is being furnished $pleursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350 and is notghled as part of the Report or as a
separate disclosure document.



Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION
Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350,
as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarb@rlkes- Act of 2002, as amended

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as added hjo8e206 of the Sarbané3xley Act of 2002, as amended, the undersignedeaffof DXF
Enterprises, Inc. (the “Company”) hereby certifieat the Company’s Annual Report on FormKL@er the year ended December 31, 2010
“Report”) fully complies with the requirements of Sectiond)3¢r 15(d), as applicable, of the Securities ErgeaAct of 1934, as amended
U.S.C. 78m or 780(d)), and that the informationtaored in the Report fairly presents, in all matkrespects, the financial condition
results of operations of the Company.

Dated: March 16, 2011
/s/IMac McConnell

Mac McConnell
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

The foregoing certification is being furnished $plpursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350 and is natdoéiled as part of the Report or a
separate disclosure document.



